
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Mercher, 5 Mawrth 2014  

 

Amser: 

09.15 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

029 2089 8505 

PwyllgorPPI@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod - 09.15 - 09.30 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09.30)  

2 Ymchwiliad i Ganlyniadau Addysgol Plant o Gartrefi Incwm Isel - 

Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6 (09.30 - 10.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 16)  
Yr Uned Pobl a Gwaith 

CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur 1 

 

James Hall, Rheolwr Prosiect Ymchwil Gweithredu 

Andrea Williams, rheolwr prosiect  

Rachel Morris, Rhiant 

 

 

 

   

3 Ymchwiliad i Ganlyniadau Addysgol Plant o Gartrefi Incwm Isel - 

Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7 (10.15 - 11.15) (Tudalennau 17 - 26)  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Ysgolion Cynradd 

CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur 2 - Ysgol Gynradd Goetre   

CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur 3 - Pennaeth Ysgol Gynradd Pilgwenlli 

CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur 4 - Ysgol Gynradd Blaen y maes 

 

Ann Broadway, Gweithiwr Cymorth Addysg i Deuluoedd, Ysgol Gynradd Goetre   

Kath Bevan, Pennaeth Ysgol Gynradd Pilgwenlli 

Bev Phillips, Pennaeth Ysgol Gynradd Blaen y maes  

  

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd 

o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol:   

5 Ymchwiliad i Ganlyniadau Addysgol Plant o Gartrefi Incwm Isel  - 

Adborth ar ymweliadau (11.15 - 11.30)  

6 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru (11.30 - 11.45) (Tudalennau 27 - 32) 

7 Ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant - Ystyried yr adroddiad drafft 

(11.45 - 12.00) (Tudalennau 33 - 62) 

8 Gwybodaeth ychwanegol ar gyfer y Pwyllgor   

 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus  (Tudalen 63) 
CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur i’w nodi 7 

 

 

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol ar gyfer yr ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant gan CLlLC yn 

dilyn cyfarfod 15 Ionawr  (Tudalennau 64 - 121) 
CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur i’w nodi 8 

 

 

Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau  (Tudalennau 122 - 123) 
CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur i’w nodi 9 

 

 

Cyflwyniad gan Chwaraeon Cymru ar gyfer yr ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant  

(Tudalennau 124 - 130) 
CYPE(4)-06-14 – Papur i’w nodi 10 

 



Tudalen 1

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Eitem 2
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYP(4)-06-14 – Paper 1 – People and Work Unit 

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income 

Households 

School Focused Communities 2009-2015 – a summary 

This project works with 44 young people and their families, following them as they 

progress through secondary school and make the transition to adulthood. The 

project objectives were to improve attendance and behaviour in schools, attainment 

and promote family involvement in learning. The first group of young people 

completed compulsory education in June 2013, and the second group will complete 

compulsory education in June 2014. With continuing support from the Paul Hamlyn 

Foundation, the objectives have developed to encourage continued involvement in 

learning and an effective transition to post-16 education and employment. An annual 

survey, begun in 2008, is following the cohort and their peers to measure changes in 

attitudes to learning and behaviour as they progress through education. Key 

outcomes of the project to date are summarised below.  

Behaviour in school  

School behaviour has improved. There have been no permanent exclusions 

amongst the young people in the cohort and although the survey shows that pupils 

from Glyncoch are still more likely to self report that they get into trouble in school 

than their peers, the school now report there are far fewer incidents of poor 

behaviour. Both the school and the Communities First cluster have adopted some of 

the project’s methodology when dealing with areas beyond Glyncoch, including 

employing a community based school-family liaison worker.  

Attendance at school  

When the project started school attendance levels of pupils from Glyncoch were a 

cause for concern. Termly attendance across both the year groups the project is 

Tudalen 15



working with is now almost exactly the same level as the full year group each term. 

In addition to required attendance, there has been an excellent take up of revision 

support both in the school and at additional sessions arranged by the project in 

Glyncoch. Many of the young people re-sat their maths GCSE three times during this 

academic year, demonstrating high resilience and improved ability to cope with 

disappointment (not evident from previous year groups).  

Family involvement in learning  

The Project Leader has text or Facebook contact with over two thirds of the 

parents/carers and uses such contact to remind families about parents’ evenings, 

exams, results and revision sessions. This has created a much stronger awareness 

of what needs to happen and has developed support for learning. Many informal 

conversations have demonstrated an increased support for educational progress 

(e.g. one mother who was nervous about her son attending a local solicitor’s for work 

experience wrote a very positive letter of thanks following the placement). Six young 

people from the Year 12 group are in sixth form (none were there when the Unit 

arrived in 2007), 13 are in further education college (being supported by the Project 

Leaders of SFC and Build It Together – a construction skills project). Six of the 

current Year 12 group of young people have expressed a clear desire to attend 

university (there were none at the school looking to attend university from this area 

when the Unit started work in Glyncoch in 2008), indicating a broader acceptance in 

families of the idea of continuing in learning past compulsory school age. 

 

www.peopleandworkunit.org.uk 

James Hall 

Project Manager 

james.hall@peopleandworkunit.org.uk 

 

Tudalen 16

http://www.peopleandworkunit.org.uk/
mailto:james.hall@peopleandworkunit.org.uk


National Assembly for Wales 

 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

 

CYP(4)-06-14 – Paper 2 – Goetre Primary School 

 

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income 

Households 

 

Ann Broadway – Education Family Support Worker. 

 

My name is Ann Broadway and I am the Education Family Support 

Worker for Goetre Primary School.  The role evolved from the school 

going from a Infant and Junior Department in 2011 to a Junior School, 

and whilst the Head teacher knew that she could deal with the 

Educational Attainment needed for the school the Social and Emotional 

Issues that were being dealt with on a daily basis would increase 

dramatically so looked for the employment of such Role. 

 

When I first came in to post, I had been working as a Drugs Officer at a 

local Substance Misuse Agency in the Merthyr Tydfil area, and had a 

relationship with some of the parents on the Gurnos Estate, and I do 

believe that this is what has made my post so successful that Parent’s 

already trusted me from my previous employment. 

 

I sent a questionnaire out to every parent in the school, asking them what 

they expected of me as an Education Family Support Worker and it was 

from there that my job took off. 

 

I built up links with the Community brought in Tutors from the 

University joined up with our Local Authority Basic Skills Department 

and set up Training Courses for the Parents which they had requested. 

I began with Holistic Therapy Courses, Cookery Classes (using the local 

community), Basic Skills, Welsh for Beginner’s and also trained Parents 

myself in substance misuse and the effects that this would have on the 

home. 

 

During my first year I placed a total of 52 Parent’s on training, and from 

this a number of the Parent’s have gone on to do College and University 

Courses. 

 

Tudalen 17

Eitem 3



To date in my role I have engaged with a total of 220 Parents and either 

made referrals to support services, social services, MIA, Banardos, 

Drugaid, Life Skills, Life Support Classes and many more. 

 

I also work with children who are currently living in deprivation and 

poverty and offer these children Life Coaching Sessions and Social & 

Emotional Lessons which I have named as the “Really Cool Club” (all of 

which have been really effective). 

 

I also run sessions such as “Bring a Male to School Day”, and this year 

we had a total of 129 Males attend at Goetre Primary School to engage 

with their Children in a school environment.  I also deliver a 

“Grandparent Skill Swap” where I bring in Grandparents who show their 

grandchildren games they played at school and also memories of their 

time in education and together we make a memory quilt. 

 

During my time in Goetre I have become the Attendance Champion for 

the School and I have raised attendance and worked on Lateness for 

children raising both.  I have drawn up a number of initiatives and this 

has made a huge impact on Goetre’s attendance reports. 

 

I also work closely with our SEBD class and also our SEN Class children 

and I have an open door policy for both Parent’s and Children alike. 

 

I offer a number of support sessions to parents and I was instrumental in 

being the first school in Merthyr Tydfil not only to run a SAP class for 

children but also for Parents.  This saw behaviour of children who were 

facing exclusion dramatically change as Parents learning how to deal with 

the behaviour at home, which was having a positive effect on behaviour 

in school. 

 

I run a number of trips for our most disadvantaged pupils and parents and 

look to Community Links in helping support these excursions.   

 

The list of my work is endless, and I look forward to discussing this 

further with you and sharing good practice. 

 

Ann Broadway 

Education Family Support Worker 

Goetre Primary School. 

Tudalen 18



1 | P a g e  
 

National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYP(4)-06-14 – Paper 3 – Pillgwenlly Primary School 

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income 

Households 

Briefing Paper on Family Engagement Projects at Pillgwenlly Primary 

Pillgwenlly Primary School is based next to the dock area of Newport. It is an area of high 

deprivation with quite a transient population. There are currently 681 pupils on roll; 90% 

EAL/BME and 21% of the school population not speaking the English Language. The school 

has 32 spoken languages, FSM 42.5%, Number on SEN register 39%.  Pillgwenlly Primary 

prides itself on working with the whole family in order to maximise the learning in every 

household. 

Pillgwenlly Primary School currently offers the following projects and initiatives: 

1. Nurture Groups 

2. Family Nurture Group 

3. Family Learning: OCN English, 

4. Family Intervention Learning: Reading Boosters, Maths Games 

5. English as a Second Language Class 

6. Family Lending Library 

7. Practical Parenting Sessions 

8. LAP/ NAP 

9. Reception Parents Literacy 

Nurture Groups 

Pillgwenlly Primary offers a Nurture Group to provide a suitable learning environment for 

some of the most vulnerable pupils and the ‘hard to reach’ parents. Parents fully engage 

with the Group and attend ‘Play and Stay’ sessions, Reading Guidance sessions and attend 

family breakfast sessions. In March, we will be piloting an exciting new Family Learning 

Programme with our Nurture Group parents that will involve using IPads to explore learning 

Tudalen 19



2 | P a g e  
 

programmes available for the children. The Foundation Phase Nurture Group has been in 

operation since 2004. The school has been awarded the Boxall Quality Mark Award.  

Family Nurture Group 

Since 2010, there has been a significant increase in learners arriving who do not speak 

English and have had little or no previous school experience.  We recognised the particular 

needs of these learners and needed a strategy to engage the families in the life and work of 

the school. We established a Family Nurture Group to provide these families with social and 

emotional support while settling into the local community and school. 

The family Nurture Room provides a place where children and their family (parents or 

grandparents) can join them for part of the week. All learners have a base class. The 

children access the Family Nurture Room for 55% of their week, working alongside their 

family members for 10% or 20% of the week and attending their base classes for the 

remainder of the week with home language support. As soon as the learners have acquired 

the skills to support them with their learning and wellbeing, they transfer into their base 

class full time.  

 The outcomes have included forming trusting relationships with new families. Their 

participation in school life has resulted in improved standards for disadvantaged learners 

and has provided those learners with the literacy and social skills they require to achieve at 

school. Learners attitude to school has developed positively; pupil attendance rates have 

improved (range of 47% to 71% to a range of 84% to 96%), parent attendance to family 

learning sessions is between 94% to 100%, parental attendance to consultation evenings 

have also significantly improved. The Family Nurture Room has also provided a forum for 

parents to have access to support resources; for example - school nurse, midwife, dentistry 

and other professionals.  

Family Learning: OCN English 

Every Wednesday morning Pillgwenlly Primary offers Family Learning Sessions with a focus 

on basic skills in literacy and numeracy. Part of the morning is developing parent’s 

knowledge and understanding and the second part of the morning the parent learns 

alongside their child. Parents attending this workshop had a desire to gain a qualification, 

Tudalen 20



3 | P a g e  
 

hence the group is now called the OCN (Open College Network) Group. This parent group 

currently consists of twelve families. Many of our parents who have completed their OCN 

qualifications in previous years, are now ‘parent mentors’ and support new families in 

achieving their OCN qualifications.  

Family Intervention Learning: Reading Boosters, Maths Games 

Pupils receiving Maths Catch Up Programme have some sessions with their parents. The 

parents are shown how maths resources can help their child learn. Some resources have 

included ‘hundred square’ and how to use it, ‘multiplication grid’, number lines. The family 

session also involves playing maths games, many of which the family make to take home. 

English as a Second Language Class 

Every week parents are able to attend English Speaking Classes. An external tutor attends 

school to develop parents’ spoken language and written language. This is a very popular 

class accessed by a mix of ethnic minority parents. 

Family Lending Library 

Families can borrow games, puzzles or books on a weekly basis. Children are shown how to 

play the games in order for them to share the activity with their families. 

Practical Parenting Classes 

Pillgwenlly Primary School offers families help, support and guidance in supporting them 

with their parenting. Parents are given the opportunity to make visual timetables for the 

home, routine charts to support them getting their children to bed and to school, positive 

behaviour charts and healthy eating support. 

LAP/NAP 

In the Autumn term, our new Nursery parents are invited to attend Language and Play 

sessions. Parents attend practical sessions alongside their children in order to gain a better 

understanding of how their children learn, and how they can support this learning at home. 

This is followed by a Numeracy and Play programme in the Spring term.  

 

Tudalen 21



4 | P a g e  
 

Reception Parents Literacy 

As a continuation of parental engagement in Nursery though LAP and NAP, Reception 

parents are invited to attend Literacy sessions on a Wednesday in the Family Learning room. 

Parents continue to develop their knowledge of how they can support their children’s 

learning.  

Starting this year, many of our Family Engagement Programmes are run by a fully trained in-

house facilitator.  

Pillgwenlly Primary School recognises there is always more to do to engage parents in their 

child’s learning and attitude to school life. Plans for this financial year is to produce some 

short factual and helpful information leaflets called: 

Attendance: Every Day Counts 

How to Help your Child with Maths: Every Day with Numbers 

How to Help your Child with Reading: Every Day with Words 

Tudalen 22



National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYP(4)-06-14 – Paper 4 – Blaen y maes Primary School 

Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income 

Households 

VISION STATEMENT 
 
We aspire that all our children become confident secure individuals who 
achieve personal success.  They are given every opportunity to achieve their 
full potential, develop a love of learning, and acquire skills to become 21st 
century learners with the ability to make informed choices. 

 
At Blaen y maes Primary School, we are committed to ensuring equality of education 
and opportunity for all pupils, staff, parents and carers receiving services from the 
school, irrespective of disability, race, gender, age, sexual orientation, religion or 
belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil 
partnership.  We aim to develop a culture of inclusion and diversity in which all those 
connected to the school feel proud of their identity and able to participate fully in 
school life. 
 
The achievement of pupils is monitored and we use this data to support pupils, raise 
standards and ensure inclusive teaching.  We tackle discrimination by the positive 
promotion of equality, challenging bullying and stereotypes and creating an 
environment which champions respect for all.  We are a Restorative Practice school 
and a Rights Respecting school.  We believe that diversity is a strength, which 
should be respected and celebrated by all those who learn, teach and visit here. 
 
Our mission at Blaen y maes Primary School is to provide a school where the 
children, parents/Guardians, staff, governors and community work together to offer a 
welcoming, caring, stimulating and safe environment in order to stimulate effective 
learning and instil a sense of pride in oneself, the school, the community and the 
country. 
 
We endeavour to celebrate our achievements together, as a school family, with each 
person being valued and respected.  The children, their education and well being are 
central to all decision-making at Blaen y maes Primary School.  Our vision is to 
provide a rich, varied, balanced and well-resourced curriculum which will stimulate 
the natural curiosity and enquiring mind of every child, regardless of ability, race or 
gender.  We want each and every child to achieve his or her true potential. 
 
Our aim is that the lives of all who leave Blaen y maes Primary School will have 
been enhanced by their experience with us, having experienced a network of  
support ensuring each child will leave equipped with the ability and eagerness to 
learn more and be ready to meet the challenges of adolescent and adult life. 

Tudalen 23



 
Characteristics of our school 
 

Blaen y maes Primary School is located within a large housing estate on the 
eastern side of the city of Swansea.  It is a local authority maintained school.  
The school building dates from 1960’s.  Originally the buildings housed separate 
infant and junior schools under the same roof.  The school is now an 
amalgamated primary school.  The accommodation consists of a very large main 
complex, built on two levels.  The original infant wing is predominantly used as a 
Flying Start setting and includes a Reception class, a large hall, staff room, 
PCSO room, SENCO/Music area and reprographics area.  The original junior 
wing includes a Head teacher’s room, an administration office, all key stage 2 
classes as well as year 1 and 2, an art room, a family room, a computer suite 
and 2 withdrawal rooms.  Although we try to make the building and its grounds 
as aesthetically pleasing as we can, and as well-maintained by the Site Manager 
as it can be, the physical state of the building is in need of general updating.  In 
the LA’s Building Conditions Survey (2008), the building was categorised as ‘D’ 
(in a range of A-D).  In recent years the Governing Body and LA has invested 
considerable sums of money in general refurbishment and redecoration.  The 
area is one in which litter, vandalism and graffiti are commonplace, but - 
thankfully – the school remains relatively untouched by these elements.  The 
school occupies an extensive site that is adjacent to the Police Station and local 
football pitch and Community Centre. 

 
The school serves Penderry 7 ward, one of the most deprived wards in Swansea 
ranked in the 1st quartile.  We are the most challenged school in our Core Data 
family. 
 
Housing in the area consists of council and Gwalia housing there are no private 
rental properties.  Around 73% of pupils are entitled to free school meals (the FSM 
figure has varied between 70 and 81% over last five years).  The vast majority of 
pupils come from homes where English is the first language.  8.4% of the school has 
English as a second language.  Transition arrangements are fragmented as our local 
Comprehensive was closed 3 years ago, last year the children split to 5 different 
comprehensives.  Pupil mobility rates (in-year transfers in and out of school) are high 
22.8%+ November 2013, the highest in Swansea.  Total S.E.N. rates are around 
51%+ (children on SEN register).  Even though there is a national and county-wide 
emphasis on reducing the numbers of statemented children, we still carry a high ratio 
of statemented children (13) to mainstream children. 
 
There are currently 190 f.t.e. pupils on roll, which include 46 part-time Nursery 
children.  The school is proud to manage the Flying Start setting which has the 
capacity to accommodate 108 two year olds.  55% the possible school catchment 
attend the school, higher than any of the 3 local primaries and 15 of children who 
attend are preferred placement.  Attendance over the past 4 years has risen from 
86% to 93%.  The school is organised into single-age classes and mixed-age 
classes as well as two part-time Nursery classes.  They are taught by nine full-time 
teachers.  
 

Tudalen 24



Around 92.1% of the school roll is situated in the most deprived 30% of areas in 
Wales.  Local information suggests that the Penderry ward has the highest levels of 
unemployment and income support claimants.  We are a designated ‘Communities 
First’ area. 
 

To enable us to achieve our goals we have established a Well Being Team that 
comprises of an emotional well being officer, family inclusion worker,  
 
The school runs a number of successful groups to give families/parents 
opportunities to work with their children. 
 
Strengthening Families – Oxford Brookes programme 
 
Men behaving dadly – Only men and Kids allowed 
 
Parenting Groups  
 
Flying Start 
 
Story Sack Workshops 
 
So to do – programme 
 
Family Support – individual help, food hampers, clothes, drug awareness, 
difficult behaviour etc 
 
Family Values 
 
Family Learning 
 
Family /Guardian Council 
 
Information Rotation 
 
Community cohesion days  
 
New for the Spring Term: 
 
Numeracy/Literacy Work shops 
 
Attendance has greatly improved over the past 5 years moving from 86% to 
93%, it currently stands at 94%. 
 
Last year saw the best results at the end of Key stage 2 where 83% achieved 
level 4 or above. 
 
Whilst some parents won’t engage with different agencies, school provides a 
buffer zone and acts as support and encourager with great success.  We have 
worked incredibly hard over the past 5 years to instil a sense of trust and fair 
play within our school community.  This now enables us to communicate 

Tudalen 25



effectively with some of most vulnerable families and make a difference to the 
lives of the children. 
 
Every child has a network of support that encompasses their school life at Blaen 
y maes.  We use data and variety of tests and professional input to determine 
their academic needs, from this lesson’s are differentiated and decisions made 
to best support the child’s learning.  Using PASS and school questionnaires we 
determine the child’s well being needs, which are discussed and a suitable plan 
to meet their needs is put into place e.g. accessing our So to do project.  We 
work closely with Housing Associations, the Police, Fire Service, Parenting, 
Social Services and many other agencies that affect the lives of the community 
we serve.  
 
We are a Restorative Practice School and a Rights Respecting School the 
principles of which underpin the ethos of the school.  In Blaenymaes every child 
has the right to access the best quality education, ensure their well being needs 
are met which enables each child to achieve his or her full potential. 
 
 
Mrs Bev Phillips 
Head Teacher 
Blaen y maes Primary 

Tudalen 26



Tudalen 27

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Eitem 6
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Tudalen 33

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Eitem 7
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus     

Public Accounts Committee 

 

David Sissling 

Director General, Health and Social 

Services and Chief Executive of NHS 

Wales 

Welsh Government 

Cathays Park 

Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 February 2014 

 

 

Dear David, 

 

Wales Audit Office/Health Inspectorate Wales Joint Report: Child and 

Adolescent Mental Health Services: Follow-up Review of Safety Issues 

  

The Public Accounts Committee recently considered the Wales Audit Office 

(WAO) and Health Inspectorate Wales (HIW) Joint Report: Child and 

Adolescent Mental Health Services: Follow-up Review of Safety Issues, which 

was published on 11 December 2013. 

 

The Committee does not intend to undertake an inquiry into the issues 

raised by the report at this time, given that the Children, Young People and 

Education Committee is currently undertaking a review examining the 

standards and availability of Child and Adolescent Mental Services (CAMHS).  

In due course we will consider the findings of that review and then consider 

whether there are any outstanding issues that the Public Accounts 

Committee may wish to consider within our remit. 

 

To assist us with this we would be grateful if the Welsh Government could 

provide us with a response to the WAO/HIW Joint Report including details of 

how the Welsh Government will take forward the wider recommendations of 

the report. 

 

I look forward to receiving your response. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Darren Millar AM - Chair of the Public Accounts Committee 

 

cc. Ann Jones AM – Chair of the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-06-14 - Paper to note 7

Tudalen 63

Eitem 8a



  

Children and Young People 
Committee:  Inquiry into Childhood 
Obesity Additional Evidence 
 

February 2014 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-06-14 - Paper to note 8

Tudalen 64

Eitem 8b



Inquiry into Childhood Obesity Additional Evidence 
Welsh Local Government Association - February 2014 

 

 

2 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities in 

Wales, the three national park authorities and the three fire and rescue authorities.   

 

2. It seeks to provide representation to local authorities within an emerging policy 

framework that satisfies the key priorities of our members and delivers a broad range of 

services that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they serve. 

 

3. Following the WLGA evidence session with the National Assembly for Wales Children and 

Young People Committee on the 15th January 2014 the Committee was keen to receive 

additional written evidence on a number of issues relating to childhood obesity. This 

report contains the information requested by the Committee. 

 

The All Wales Obesity Pathway 

 

4. Please see the attached case study on the use of the All Wales Obesity Pathway.  

 

Child Measurement Programme  

 

5. The WLGA is currently awaiting information on examples of interaction between health 

visitors who work at part of the Flying Start programme and their use of the child 

measurement programme. The information in the child measurement programme is 

however, used as a key indicator in the Welsh Government early years plan, Building a 

Brighter Future.  

 

Change4Life     

 

6.  Wales, as far as the WLGA is aware, does not participate in the Start 4 Life programme, 

initiatives aimed at the under 7s in Wales are channelled through the Flying Start 

Programme.  

 

Appetite for Life 

 

7. Local authorities in Wales monitor the take-up of school meals in order to effectively 

plan for provision. Information on the take-up of schools meals as a whole is currently 

not collated at a national level. Information is collected in relation to the number of 

Tudalen 65



  

pupils who are eligible for and who take-up a free school meal. In 2012/2013 the total 

number of children in Wales eligible for free school meals was 83,498, the total taking 

up free school meals averaged 79% on the school census day.  

 

8. A proportion of the funding for obesity programmes is retained within grants provided 

by the Welsh Government which have to date been relatively unaffected by recent 

budget constraints. There are some exceptions, for example, MEND funding will be 

looked at as part of the full review on public health programmes undertaken in 2013. 

The schools budget has been subject to protection in line with the First Minister’s 

commitment and local authorities are now delegating over 82% of funding directly to 

schools to which can be used to fund school-based programmes such as Wales Healthy 

Schools Programme. 

 

9. As the Committee will be aware all local authorities in Wales are seeking to make budget 

savings following an average 4% reduction in the funding that they receive from Welsh 

Government through the Revenue Support Grant (RSG). Authorities are considering a 

range of measures to ensure that the best value is being made of public money whilst 

fulfilling statutory functions.  

 

Creating an Active Wales 

 

10.  All local authorities in Wales have developed their own strategy, for example, Creating 

an Active Cardiff. These plans are created in partnership with Sport Wales and include 

local authority physical activity plans that are then funded by grants from Welsh 

Government and the lottery, e.g. 5 x 60 Dragon Sport. The level of resources provided 

through Sport Wales has remained consistent up until 2014, however final budgets for 

the next financial year have not yet been set but there is a likelihood of a reduction of 

approx 4.5%. 

 

11.  There are a number of ways in which the Creating an Active Wales plan is monitored 

and evaluated. At a strategic level, there is a cross-departmental Welsh Government 

group in place to oversee the implantation of the action plan. At a local authority level, 

specifically in relation to physical activity and sport, the Chief Leisure Officers in Wales 

and Sport Wales have developed a results based accountability approach which focuses 

on key indicators to monitor progress, using information such as the number of children 

who can swim by age 11. All local authorities also produce annual Local Authority 

Physical Activity Plans. The plans are closely monitored and evaluated by Sport Wales 

through an annual return on achievements within the plan. 

Tudalen 66



Inquiry into Childhood Obesity Additional Evidence 
Welsh Local Government Association - February 2014 

 

 

4 

  

12.  The level of financial pressures being faced by local authority leisure services is 

unprecedented. In order to address these issues local authorities have looked to 

alternative methods of delivering their leisure services, including external trusts, internal 

trusts, contracting out to the private sector, community partnerships with the 3rd sector 

and local community management. There will however, be instances where centres or 

facilities close due to a combination of factors beyond just the revenue costs. Such 

factors include condition of the building, present low use of the facility and new facilities 

replacing the old.  

 

13.  The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 comes into force in mid-2014 and requires councils 

to create a network of routes for walking and cycling. This legislation will be 

implemented, monitored and evaluated. The legislation requires local authorities to 

identify and map the enhancements that would be required to create a fully integrated 

network for walking and cycling, and develop a prioritised list of schemes to deliver this 

network. This requirement presents an opportunity to develop safe routes for children to 

use to and from school.  

 

14.  Many local authorities already employ strategies to encourage more children to walk or 

cycle, such programmes might include: 

 

 Introducing traffic calming measures and/or 20mph speed limits around schools; 

 Development of footpaths and cycle paths on key routes, for example under the 

Safe Routes in Communities Programme; 

 Cycling training or cycle loan schemes to ensure that children have access to a 

bicycle and are able to cycle safely and confidently; 

 A ‘walking bus’ led by parent volunteers, is a cost-effective solution to help 

children get to school safely on foot.  

 

15. The legislation also enables local authorities to develop safe environments where 

children can play in the evenings, weekends and holidays. Through this legislation, there 

is an opportunity to achieve positive outcomes for children’s health via planning 

mechanisms. Consideration of programmes and initiatives aimed at reducing childhood 

obesity should be taken into account early on in any discussions.   

 

MEND 

 

Tudalen 67



  

16. The MEND programme is managed by Public Health Wales and delivered by many local 

authorities. The programme has been reviewed by Public Health Wales and through its 

National Health Improvement Review it was determined that Public Health Wales and 

the Welsh Government would work together to identify a way forward. The WLGA and 

local authorities through its collective experience of delivering the National Exercise 

Referral Scheme and operational areas within MEND, have offered to work with Welsh 

Government and Public Health Wales to develop a way forward.  

 

17. The WLGA feels strongly that there needs to be a targeted but also more universal drive 

to reduce the levels of young people with obesity and would wish to see a continuation 

of funding specifically for this age group but with clearer alignment with the National 

Exercise Referral Scheme on the continuation of funding for the MEND programme.  

 

Future developments 

 

18. The WLGA in its recent work with the Effective Services for Vulnerable Groups (ESVG) 

(which reports to the Public Service Leadership Group), supported the view that health 

considerations should be an important part of planning considerations. This approach 

however, will only be successful if combined with strategies to educate children and 

young people about making healthy choices.  

 

 

 

 

 
For further information please contact: 

 
Dr Chris Llewelyn 

chris.llewelyn@wlga.gov.uk 
 

Welsh Local Government Association 
Local Government House 
Drake walk 
Cardiff 
CF10 4LG 

 
Tel:029 2046 8600 

 

Tudalen 68



Hearty Lives Torfaen: Schools Prevention programme  
 
Torfaen CBC in partnership with Aneurin Bevan Health Board and Public Health 
Wales, were awarded £1.5m through the British Heart Foundation (BHF) Hearty 
Lives funding stream.  This funding facilitated the development of an “obesity 
pathway” which enabled the joint working of clinical treatment services and 
community prevention activities, to deliver a new and innovative way of reducing 
health inequalities related to Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) by tackling obesity as a 
co-morbidity of CVD. 
 
The approach taken in developing the various elements of the „Obesity Pathway‟ 
was fully in-line with: 
 
 The Welsh Assembly Government model and framework for the management of 

chronic conditions in Wales (WAG 2008) including pathway development and 
provision of interventions in-line with tiers of population need from prevention 
through to complex condition management.  
 

 The National Service Frameworks for older people, diabetes and Coronary Heart 
Disease, all of which contain standards relating to the prevention of ill health 
through primary prevention and effective secondary prevention of disease through 
risk factor reduction and health promotion.  

 

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guidance on the 
prevention, identification, assessment and management of overweight and obesity 
which identifies the need for effective intervention across the health, social and 
community interface. 
 
School Prevention Strand Methodology 
 
He schools prevention programme targeted school aged children with the aim of 
increasing awareness and knowledge, and improving attitudes and behaviours in 
relation to diet and exercise to prevent obesity and reduce risk of CVD. 
 
The schools prevention strand focused on delivering a cascade of training to 
teachers, LSA‟s and other professionals who worked directly with children and young 
people.  A lead teacher from each school „cluster‟ took responsibility for school 
prevention development, and undertook training in the use of BHF resources, these 
lead teachers  would then deliver training to other teachers within the cluster, 
mentor, supervise and coach them to ensure quality standards of delivery in heart 
health promoting activities were maintained.   
 
A variety of BHF resources were available to schools, all of which focused on healthy 
eating and physical activity, with the exception of the BHF Heartstart programme, 
which focused on Essential Life Saving Skill (ESL), was already delivered in the 
Community in Torfaen, but was identified as valuable resource to be rolled out in 
schools, with age appropriate ESL being delivered from Primary level through to 
Adults.   The Heartstart programme, amongst other BHF resources, was ideal for 6th  
pupils who,  as part of their „Good Citizenship‟ programme at school and as part of 

Tudalen 69



the Welsh Baccalaureate community work experience, could use these resources to 
enhance their learning and skill set by having the ability to support teachers in their 
delivery to younger pupils.  6th form pupils were trained to support and cascade 
training to younger pupils throughout schools.  
 
Other BHF children and young people‟s resources enhanced the curriculum delivery 
within Torfaen schools.   The lead teachers took responsibility to train other teachers 
in how to utilise available BHF classroom resources, and therefore adopted a 
sustainable and successful model across Torfaen, which also supports the Healthy 
Schools Scheme.   
 
Schools Prevention Strand - Outcomes  
 
More than 800 teachers, learning support assistants and sixth form pupils were 
trained to utilise BHF resources as part of their curriculum delivery or provision. 
Through the schools prevention strand of the Hearty Lives Torfaen programme, 
48,846 contacts with children were involved in activities and curriculum-based 
learning about heart health, healthy eating, physical activity and healthy weight, in 
addition to  
 
TCBC staff delivered a range of school-based activities on heart health, BHF 
awareness and promotion of healthy lifestyles in a number of different ways 
including, during PSHE sessions and additional workshops but importantly 
embedding this work through existing after-school activities and using BHF 
resources throughout the core curriculum, during each school term by the project 
development workers and trained teaching staff.  
 
Overall this strand aimed to build a sustainable approach through leadership in 
partnership with schools and other education providers enabling TCBC staff to 
support capacity development (providing skills, knowledge and resources) to 
continue to deliver this work. Positioning of this strand within the TCBC was crucial 
to the change agreed to by the schools in training and delivery amongst their busy 
schedule – including education authority wide ESTYN inspection (the statutory 
education and training inspectorate for Wales).  
 
Schools were allowed the autonomy of how they introduced the resources to their 
curriculum, to ensure they fitted with their schemes of work. Process evaluation 
information was collected from Teachers and through focus groups, the results of 
which enabled continual improvement which increased the scope of the HLT 
programme within schools by allowing programme more flexibility.  
 
Training in the use of BHF resources was flexible and appropriately pitched, to 
enable teachers to come together collectively, share ideas and best practice and 
also to “up-skill” teachers who required some additional knowledge around the 
subject area  
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 70



The specific elements of this strand of the programme included: 
 

1. Jump Rope for Heart (Schools)  
Encouraging physical activity through skipping, there is a resources pack including 
materials, equipment and teaching support which the schools can also use to raise 
money for the BHF and/or for their schools. 527 teachers, 6th formers and other play 
and youth service staff were trained. Lead teachers in secondary schools developed 
and monitored skipping activities within schools and across school clusters. Training 
took place during routine INSET and planned workshop sessions. Practice sessions 
for school children were delivered through physical education and Personal Health 
and Social Education (PHSE) lessons with jump rope activities being embedded into 
curriculum delivery across 28 schools in the borough.  
 

2. Dodgeball (Schools)  
An event-led fund-raising package which also contained tips on how to run a 
dodgeball tournament within the school setting. 527 teachers, sixth formers and 
other play/youth staff were trained. Lead teachers in secondary schools developed 
and managed ball activities within schools and across school clusters. Training took 
place during routine INSET and planned workshop sessions. Practice sessions for 
school children were delivered through physical education and PHSE lessons with 
dodge ball activities being embedded into curriculum delivery across 28 schools. 
Many Secondary Schools within Torfaen have adopted Dodgeball as part of their PE 
curriculum delivery.  
 

3.  Active Club  
Aimed at Primary Schools and Comprehensive Years 7, 8 and 9 /Key stage 2 and 3.  
This pack contains a range of physical activity ideas and resources for out of school 
settings. 527 Teachers, 6th formers and other play/youth staff were trained to deliver 
the BHF Active Club package and deliver as part of an after-school programme and 
during breaks and lunchtimes in schools. This programme also utilised resources 
such as „Let‟s get physical pocket play pack‟.  
 

4. Heart Start (Schools)  
Provides an opportunity for pupils to learn simple emergency skills which can save a 
life, the pack provides a comprehensive guide and materials to implement it in school 
setting. 802 teachers were trained along with 6th formers. The programme was 
cascaded through school clusters by the trained teachers. Training for key staff took 
place during routine teacher training days (INSET) and twilight sessions. Training for 
6th formers who also supported delivery of Heartstart took place as part of schools 
„good citizen‟ programme and Welsh Baccalaureate, with additional workshops run 
as part of the PHSE curriculum. Key Staff delivered training and support (with 
development workers) to other staff members throughout their own schools and 
within their cluster schools. 6th form pupils supported delivery of workshops and 
sessions with younger children throughout their own school and worked with children 
in feeder schools to deliver training at an age appropriate level.  
 

5.  Big Food Challenge 
Enhancing food knowledge in “learning through play” as part of the Foundation 
Phase curriculum with games and activities as well as clear teachers notes to 
incorporate in to lesson plans and delivery (Key stage 2). As part of PSHE 123 

Tudalen 71



teachers and LSA‟s were trained and also agreed to deliver the resources to be used 
to enhance the core curriculum;  Artie Beat Packages (Key stage 1) The Big Heart 
Exploration (Key stage 2).  
 
In total, 28 out of 32 schools in Torfaen “signed-up” to become Hearty Lives Torfaen 
(HLT) Schools during the lifespan of the programme. The four schools who did not 
take part were the three Welsh medium schools (the programme was unable to 
provide all school based resources in Welsh) and one school which underwent 
relocation and major building works during the programme period. 
 
 
Evaluation Data  
 
There was a large amount of activity within this strand in terms of numbers trained 
and the numbers of children-contacts from the training. In summary, to date the HLT 
programme has achieved:  
 

 48,846 children (contacts) have utilised BHF resources through curriculum 
delivery in Torfaen Schools  

 527 Teachers/Learning Support Assistant‟s (LSA‟s)/ Play/Youth Staff trained 
to deliver BHF resources  

 802 Teachers, LSA‟s and 6th Form pupils trained in Heart Start  
 
Knowledge and Awareness of Heart Health amongst Primary School Children  
 
Pre & post questionnaires were completed within some school clusters during the 
academic year 2011/12 to gage the children‟s understanding and awareness of heart 
health & healthy lifestyles, before and after the implementation and this data was 
compared against the Torfaen average. It is acknowledged that due to the nature of 
the population and the self reported results it is difficult to attribute meaningful 
changes to the intervention. The individual school reports are available on request 
and the Torfaen aggregated results are presented below.  
 
The survey was administered with primary school years four, five and six (children 
aged 8 to 11 years) in 13 primary schools in Torfaen. The questionnaires were 
administered in two phases in November 2011 and April 2012 to 1,291 and 1,365 
pupils respectively. 
 
Although the majority of the children (87%) surveyed in Torfaen Primary Schools 
perceived themselves as being very or quite healthy, 47 percent and 37 percent of 
the children self reported that they are not currently achieving the national guidelines 
in relation to physical activity and nutrition respectively. This information suggests 
that in order to benefit heart health, there is a need to increase their levels of 
physical activity and improve their diets (particularly in relation to intake of fruit and 
vegetables) to enable them to establish lasting healthy diet and physical activity 
levels. In fact in phase two 61% of children indicated they were getting a healthy 
amount of physical activity – a very important increase. 
 
Whilst there was little change in knowledge and attitudes between pre- and post-
evaluation in many of the parameters measured as part of the evaluation, there was 

Tudalen 72



a 30 percent increase in children reporting getting adequate physical activity to 
benefit their health.  
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion; it was widely acknowledged by all partners in the Hearty Lives Torfaen 
programme that the schools prevention strand was a very successful element of the 
overall programme and the model adopted would provide an excellent blueprint for 
the national Healthy Schools Scheme across Wales.   
 

Tudalen 73



 
Briefing Paper – BHF Hearty Lives Torfaen  
 
BHF 
British Heart Foundation is a medical research charity that aims to play a leading role 
in the fight against disease of the heart and circulation so that it is no longer a major 
cause of disability and premature death.   
 
Hearty Lives 
In December 2008, BHF launched a multi-million pound ‘Hearty Lives’ award 
Programme.  This new funding programme was specially created to fund innovative 
and collaborative initiatives that seek to address health inequalities due to Cardio 
Vascular Disease (CVD).  In Wales, 3 local authorities applied to the fund and Torfaen 
was successful in being awarded £1.5 million to fund a joint bid between the Local 
Authority, ABHB and Public Health Wales.  
 
Torfaen Data 
The project is targeted at the management of obesity in adults who are more at risk 
of developing major risk factors for CVD.  Welsh Health survey (WHS) data 
(2005/2007) show that at 26% Torfaen has the highest adult obesity prevalence of 
all local authority areas in Wales.  This equates to just over 19,000 obese adults 
 
Torfaen also has high levels of morbid obesity. WHS data (combined 2003/04, 
2004/05, 2005/06), suggest that between 1.3 and 2.8 per cent  of the Torfaen 
population aged 16 and over have a BMI of 40 or more. This equates to between 900 
and 2000 adults and ranks Torfaen second for morbid obesity in Wales 
 
Whilst rates of obesity in the borough increase with age, there is little difference 
between men and women. There are estimated to be significant variation in obesity 
based on a variety of determinants which are strongly related to material 
deprivation. 
 
The Torfaen Approach 
The approach taken in developing the various elements of the bid is fully in-line with: 
 The Welsh Assembly Government model and framework for the management of 

chronic conditions in Wales (WAG 2008) including pathway development and 
provision of interventions in line with tiers of population need from prevention 
through to complex condition management.  

 National Service Frameworks for older people, diabetes, CHD and children’s and 
women’s.  all of which contain standards relating to the prevention of ill health 
through primary prevention and effective secondary prevention of disease 
through risk factor reduction and health promotion  

 NICE guidance on the prevention, identification, assessment and management of 
overweight and obesity which identifies the need for effective intervention across 
the health, social and community interface. 

 
 

Tudalen 74



Stratified Obesity Management 
 
    

• Bariatric surgery 
 

• Intensive (Multidisciplinary Team) obesity clinic 
 

• General Practice based obesity service 
 

• Health promotion and primary prevention 
 
 
 
 
The Torfaen award consists of 4 Project Strands:  
 
Strand 1: Childhood Obesity - Managed by Aneurin Bevan Health Board 
Strand 1 focuses predominantly on children and young people:  
 
‘Obesity in Gwent School Children’ 
25% of Torfaen children, weighed at school entry, were overweight or obese (data 
from an audit undertaken by Dawn Slade, Paediatric SpR).  
 
Welsh Health Survey 2007 
36% of children were classified as overweight or obese, including 20% obese 
 
This is comparable to data for England from the Millennium Cohort Study 2007: 

 23.7% of 3 year olds are overweight or obese 
 Almost a third of children age 2-10 are overweight or obese 
 More than a third of children aged 11-25 (31.5%) are overweight or obese 

 
Without intervention, these children are at high-risk of long term health problems 
later in life. The NICE guidelines on obesity underlines the importance of ensuring 
that the prevention and management of obesity remains a priority for adults and 
children and the need for a broad approach on a number of levels involving multiple 
agencies. 
 
The project will target the 5 Communities First areas of Torfaen.  A children’s 
community dietician will be appointed to deliver the programme which will interface 
with ‘Flying Start/Health Visiting Services’ to enable families to adopt healthier 
lifestyles.   
 

Tudalen 75



 To support the work of Flying Start and Sure Start staff with families in 
communities first areas 

 To promote and engender healthy eating from early years onwards 
 To be a source of expert guidance and training providing  nutrition education 

and resources for staff of other disciplines and organisations as well as for 
families 

 To work with women and girls of childbearing age to avoid excessive weight 
gain in pregnancy, promote breast feeding and healthy weaning/ family diet. 

 To work with families providing of direct intervention 
 To coordinate the delivery of MEND and mini MEND programmes, 

contributing the dietetic input/ theory lead 
 
 
Designed by child obesity experts; the MEND and mini MEND programmes are family 
based with mandatory participation by parents/adult carers; their aim is to gain 
positive and sustainable lifestyle improvements for the child and other family 
members. 
 
MEND 2 – 4 focuses on families with children aged 2 - 4 years and is aimed at 
prevention and management of obesity. Research shows the child who becomes 
obese under-5 years of age has a strong likelihood of going on to be an obese 
adolescent and adult with all the attendant health risks. 
 
MEND 7-13 focuses on families with children aged 7 – 13 and seeks to inculcate 
healthier eating and physical activity behaviours at the age when children are 
receptive 
 
Project Objectives  

 Short term - to empower socially disadvantaged members of the community, 
at increased risk of CVD due to overweight or obesity, to access locally based 
information and effective services to promote a healthier community 
(evidenced by reduced waist circumference and improved cardiovascular 
fitness in participants). 

 
 Medium term - to increase the organisations’ awareness of effective 

interventions for childhood obesity and gain commitment to on-going 
funding for a sustainable service in the future, thereby actively manage risk 
factors relating to or associated with the development of heart disease 

 
 Long term – to see a halt (ultimately a reduction) in the prevalence of 

children and young people in Torfaen classified as overweight or obese 
(sustained reduction in waist circumference/ increased activity levels in 
children and young people).  

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 76



Strand 2: Schools Prevention – Managed by Torfaen County Borough Council  
 Targets school aged children to increase awareness, knowledge, attitude and 

behaviours in relation to diet and exercise to prevent obesity and reduce risk of 
CVD. 

 Focuses on a cascade of training approach, already adopted and successful within 
the local PESS programme.  A lead teacher from each school ‘cluster’ to take 
responsibility for school prevention development. Lead teachers will deliver 
training to other teachers within the cluster, mentor, supervise and coach them 
to ensure quality standards are maintained.   

 Heartstart – Already delivered in the Community in Torfaen – can be rolled out in 
schools – 6th formers could, as part of their ‘Good Citizenship’ programme at 
school or as part of the Welsh Baccalaureate community work experience. Pupils 
can be trained and cascade training to younger pupils throughout school  

 Other BHF resources will enhance the current curriculum delivery.  The ‘mentor’ 
teachers will train other teachers how to utilise available BHF classroom 
resources.   

 
 
Strand 3: Obesity Pathway - managed by Aneurin Bevan Health Board 
 Development of an obesity pathway aimed at reducing CVD inequalities  
 Support for all general practices to manage people at greater risk of CVD due to 

overweight and obesity 
 Specialist Multi-disciplinary service for people classified as morbidly obese and at 

high risk of developing CVD 
 Implementation of the agreed and locally negotiated Obesity pathway with 

evidence based protocols for the management of overweight and obese people, 
utilizing expertise from the multi-disciplinary team  

 Implementation of the agreed and locally negotiated Obesity pathway with 
evidence based protocols for the management of overweight and obese people, 
utilizing expertise from the multi-disciplinary team  

 Training and education of primary care staff, providing resources for the 
management of overweight and obese adults, information for the management 
of overweight and obese children into the BHF Hearty lives schemes 

 People seen in all parts of the service will be enabled to move up or down the 
pathway, into services that are appropriate for their needs taking into account 
their readiness for change.  

 
 
 
Strand 4: Community prevention - managed by Torfaen County Borough Council 
 Targeting adults who are ‘at risk’ of CVD. 
 Targeted GP referral programme, which enables GP’s and Health Care 

Professionals to refer patients who will benefit their health by losing weight.  
 Provides an 8 week educational and mentoring weight management programme 

that enables patients/community members to access appropriate support to 
change behaviour in relation to their nutritional intake and physical activity levels. 

Tudalen 77



 Involves delivery of 1:1 lifestyle, and group sessions focussing on diet, exercise 
and health behaviour changes.  

 Offer practical support,  information and sign-posting to existing and new health 
promoting community activities 

 Post Intervention follow-up sessions and support for 12 months following 
completion  

 
  
 

Tudalen 78



Adult Community Prevention Weight Management Strand - Total Health 2 
programme 
  
Torfaen CBC in partnership with Aneurin Bevan Health Board and Public Health 
Wales, were awarded £1.5m through the British Heart Foundation (BHF) Hearty 
Lives funding stream.  This funding facilitated the development of an “obesity 
pathway” which enabled the joint working of clinical treatment services and 
community prevention activities, to deliver a new and innovative way of reducing 
health inequalities related to Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) by tackling obesity as a 
co-morbidity of CVD. 
 
The approach taken in developing the various elements of the „Obesity Pathway‟ 
was fully in-line with: 
 
 The Welsh Assembly Government model and framework for the management of 

chronic conditions in Wales (WAG 2008) including pathway development and 
provision of interventions in-line with tiers of population need from prevention 
through to complex condition management.  
 

 The National Service Frameworks for older people, diabetes and Coronary Heart 
Disease, all of which contain standards relating to the prevention of ill health 
through primary prevention and effective secondary prevention of disease through 
risk factor reduction and health promotion.  
 

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guidance on the 
prevention, identification, assessment and management of overweight and obesity 
which identifies the need for effective intervention across the health, social and 
community interface. 
 
Total Health 2, Programme Methodology  
 
The major determinants of obesity are physical inactivity and energy dense diets 

resulting in a positive energy balance over several years. In addition to their impact on 

obesity which in turn adversely affects the other risk factors and hence CHD, the 

independent or direct effects of a healthier diet and, particularly, appropriate physical 

activity on the other risk factors as well as CHD is clinically important, statistically 

significant and consistently documented.  

 

Tudalen 79



The Hearty Lives Torfaen programme consisted of four programme strands of work, 
which aimed to tackle obesity throughout the life course, one of which is the TCBC 
managed Total Health 2 (TH2) programme.  TH2 content was developed by the TCBC 
Health Improvement Team, in collaboration with ABHB Dietetics service and the Public 
Health Team, and was fully in-line with NICE guidance for weight management and 
behaviour change.  TH2 is a unique programme, developed to tackle a growing need in 
Torfaen.   Combining everything we know about nutritional needs, physical activity and 
behaviour change theory in relation to improving people‟s health outcomes. 

 

 

TH2 was established as both a GP referral and self referral programme, to maximise 
its reach on the Torfaen population.  A GP referral route was established, as it was 
identified through our primary care partners, that there was a gap in provision for 
prevention of ill health in patients who required support to lose weight.  These patients 
were deemed “not in need” of clinical treatment, however without intervention these 
patients would be more likely to go on to have an increased risk of severe health 
problems and would eventually progress to becoming „in need‟ of clinical services. In 
light of this a programme within the community which would tackle both inactivity and 
poor diet was identified as a need.  

People were also encouraged to self-refer to TH2, as it was identified that people with 
weight issues can often be reluctant to visit their GP or clinician for support or advice 
for their fear of being “judged”. Therefore it was agreed that TH2 would best serve the 
population of Torfaen and be more accessible if it was delivered within community 
settings across Torfaen.  

 

Based on these identified needs the TH2 programme was developed and implemented 
across Torfaen to offer targeted weight management support. 

 

TH2 is fundamentally an eight week weight management programme, which provides 
on-going support for a 12month period to individuals to support the maintenance stage 
of their behaviour change.   

 

Mechanism for monitoring impact on population health 

TH2 incorporates National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) guidelines 
which offer a robust evidence base on which Total Health has been formulated.  This 
programme also provides a robust framework for weight management and currently 
forms a programme approach to provide a pathway into clinical, treatment age 
appropriate weight loss services that are needed. Total Health 2 offers a clinical, 
evidence based approach to achieving and sustaining weight loss amongst the target 
population, whilst also complimenting a full range of community learning and education 
programmes that already exist for health promotion.   
 
The Total Health programme has a robust evaluation framework in place which has 
been designed in collaboration with Public Health Wales, Torfaen Locality and 
incorporates previously validated health and lifestyle monitoring questionnaires.  

Tudalen 80



Participants are assessed and monitored pre and post intervention to enable positive 
changes and programme successes to be robustly recorded. 

 

As TH2 is “unique” in its approach and delivery model, it was crucial to fully evaluate 
the outcomes, as it is the only programme of its kind that combines nutritional 
educational and physical activity in a “whole” programme approach.  There is a strong 
evidence base to using this type of model and this is advocated by NICE Guidance as 
the best approach to long term health and weight management (good diet and regular 
physical activity).    

 

 

 

Programme Outcomes:  

 

The programme aimed to target adults that were sedentary and a have poor diet.  The 
target population were those perceived to be „at risk‟ from overweight and obesity, and 
developing CHD/CVD. 
 
By the end of the programme they would;  

1. increase their knowledge and awareness (Short-term) 

2. make positive changes in their attitude (Medium-term)  

3. report improved access to local facilities (Short-term) 

4. make positive changes in their behaviour towards healthy eating, physical activity 

and smoking (Long-term) 

 

Since the Hearty Lives Torfaen programme commenced in 2010/11, 523 people have 
contacted the TH2 service, 442 of these were assessed for their suitability and 
readiness to change, of which 379 people were registered to attend TH2 and 259 
people went on to complete the full TH2 programme.  
 
As previously mentioned the TH2 programme has a robust evaluation framework in 
place, which aimed to capture primary outcomes related to weight for health, 
secondary outcomes of health improvement and health behaviour change and tertiary 
outcomes of changes to the processes of behaviour change, such as self-efficacy or 
confidence.   Participants were assessed and monitored pre and post intervention, and 
again at 3months, six months and 12months to enable positive changes and 
programme successes to be robustly recorded.  
 
 

Evaluation 

A formal evaluation was conducted by Public Health Wales.  Carried out on 161 course 
participants with an age range from 16-78 years of age.  The average age was 53 
years.  

A range of measures were used including clinical outcomes, physical and mental 

Tudalen 81



health and wellbeing scores.  A range of measures and evaluation tools were used to 
evaluate the impact of the programme.   Self-efficacy assessments, weight efficacy 
lifestyle score, IPAQ (Physical Activity Questionnaire), and a set of standard questions 
from SF36v2.  
 
The key highlights from the formal evaluation report are: 

The physical summary component score at baseline is 46.9, below the Welsh average 
(48.8) and the Torfaen average (47.7).  Post intervention this improved (48.7) to above 
the Torfaen average and in-line with the Welsh average.  At 6 months follow-up this 
increased to (50)    

The mental health summary component score at baseline is 44.9, considerable lower 
than the Torfaen and Welsh averages of 49.8 and 49 respectively. (WHS, 2010, 2011).  
Post intervention this improved to (49.7) in-line with the Torfaen and Welsh average.  
At 6 months, this improved to 49.8. 

The improvement in mental and physical health component scores is consistent with 
the average clinical weight loss achieved by participants.  The data was subject to a 
paired sample analysis and both physical activity and mental health component scores 
are statistically significant at the 95% level. 

Qualitative data was collected using the International Physical Activity Questionnaire, 
short version (IPAQ) to compare pre and post intervention data with  a categorical 
variable which relates to the UK Chief Medical Officers recommendations for aerobic / 
healthy physical activity (150 minutes of moderate level intensity or 75 minutes of 
vigorous intensity physical activity per week).  Post intervention, 70% of participants 
reported physical activity at a level to benefit health.  In summary, the analysis carried 
out with the IPAQ  questionnaire indicated that post programme 70% of TH2 
participants were achieving enough physical activity to benefit their health.   

 
The clinical evaluation outcomes are as follows: 

Participants BMI ranged from 23.6 to 48.5 with an average of 33.7.  Healthy BMI range 
is 18 to 25. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 82



 

 

Of 157 participants with recorded BMI at pre-post intervention, 135 (86%) had lost 
weight post intervention.  7 people maintained their weight, no change. 15 had gained 
weight.  Amongst those who lost weight, the average weight loss 3.17kg. 

The evaluation data show that weight measurements at baseline and follow-up 
intervals that weight loss is not only maintained but participants continued to lose 
weight over time. At 6 month follow-up weight loss has increased to 5.8kg and at one 
year further increases to 8.5kg compared to baseline weight.  As the post intervention 
period increases, the numbers for follow-up decreases at 6 months and 12 months and 
therefore the confidence interval widens from: 

 Post intervention 95% CI, -2.7 to 3.6.kg 

 6 months 95% CI, -4.6 to -6.9.kg 

 One year 95% CI, -4.9 to -11.9kg 
 

The above statistical information indicates that the number of participants reduced at 6 
month and 12 month follow-up, however, even with the reduced attendances at follow-
up, the results are still statistically significant at the 95% level. This level of confidence 
indicates that if TH2 was delivered in a similar population it would have the same 
impact and success in terms of health outcomes.  

 

Conclusion  
The formal evaluation, conducted by Public Health Wales; Locality Team, states that 
“Total Health 2 is a very successful community weight management programme for 
people with overweight to moderate obesity.  The data shows that the participants lost 
a statistically significant and clinically important amount of weight, lowered their BMI 
and reduced their weight circumference.  Participants’ general health, physical and 
mental health components improved in addition to improving their physical activity 
levels.  The changes were observed up to one year follow-up and self efficacy an 
important cognitive determinant of behavior change and maintenance of healthy 
behavior also increased with respect to both physical activity and diet”.  
 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 83



 

 
1 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ANEURIN BEVAN UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD 
 
 
 
 

TOGETHER FOR HEALTH – DIABETES DELIVERY PLAN 
 
 
 

LOCAL DELIVERY PLAN 
 

A Delivery Plan up to 2016 for Aneurin Bevan University 
Health Board and its Partners 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 84



 

 
2 

 

 

SECTIONS          PAGE 
 

1 Welsh Government Policy & Strategic Direction   3 
 

2 Demographic and epidemiology profile of diabetes  
in Aneurin Bevan University Health Board Area   6 

 
3 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Diabetes 

 Incidence Rates        11 
 

4 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Vision   15 
 

5 Drivers for Change       18 
 

6 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Approach 

 To Tackling Diabetes       19 
 

7 Performance Measures/Management    22 
 

8 The Priorities for 2013-2016      23 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Tudalen 85



 

 
3 

 

1 Welsh Government Policy & Strategic Direction 
 
“Together for Health – Diabetes Delivery Plan” was published by the 

Welsh Government in 2013 and provides a framework for action by Local 
Health Boards and NHS Trusts working together with their partners.  It 

sets out the Welsh Government’s expectations of the NHS in Wales to 
tackle diabetes for people of all ages, wherever they live in Wales and 

whatever their circumstances. The Plan is designed to enable the NHS to 

deliver on its responsibility to meet the needs of people at risk of, or 
affected by, diabetes. 

 
 

There is a focus on high quality health care for the people of Wales, with 
increased levels of personal responsibility for lifestyle choices that 

increase people’s risks of developing chronic diseases, such as diabetes.  
 

Welsh Government’s Strategic Context 
 

The Welsh Government’s Programme for Government and its 5 year NHS 
Plan, “Together for Health”, introduced an ambitious programme for 

health in Wales so that: 
 

 Health will be better for everyone 

 Access to care and patient experience will be better 
 Better service safety and quality will improve health outcomes 

 
Achieving Excellence: The Quality Delivery Plan for the NHS in Wales for 

2012-16 describes a journey to consistent excellence in service.  It 
outlines actions for quality assurance and improvement with a 

commitment to a quality-driven NHS that provides services that are: 
 Safe 

 Effective 
 Accessible 

 Affordable; and 
 Excellent User Experience 

 
 

What Does The Welsh Government Want to Achieve? 

 
The Welsh Government aim for Wales to have diabetes incidence rates, 

and health care outcomes, comparable with the best in Europe. The 
following population outcome indicators will be used to measure success: 

 
 Incidence of type 2 diabetes per 100,000 population 

 Circulatory disease mortality rate under age 75 per 100,000 
population 

Tudalen 86



 

 
4 

 

 Age group specific diabetes mortality rate under age 75 per 

100,000 population 
 Variations in incidence of complications of diabetes by geography 

and deprivation 
  

These aims build on the Welsh Government policy set out in the 
Programme for Government and Together for Health to deliver real and 

measureable improvements in Diabetes through an ambitious programme 
for health and health care in Wales. 

 
To achieve this ambitious programme the Welsh Government has set out 

evidence based actions in its Diabetes Delivery Plan to improve outcomes, 
between now and 2016, in the following key themed areas: 

 
 Children and Young People 

Ensure children and young people with diabetes have the best 

possible start in life and are given the opportunity to fulfil their 
potential. 

 
 Preventing Diabetes 

People are aware how to live a healthy lifestyle, make healthy 
choices that minimise their risk of developing diabetes and 

understand the consequences of not doing so. 
 

 Detecting Diabetes Quickly 
Diabetes is detected quickly where it does occur. 

 
 Delivering fast, effective treatment and care 

People receive fast, effective treatment and care so they have the 
best chance of living a long and healthy life, with patients taking 

responsibility for lifestyle choices that contribute positively to their 

treatment and care. 
 

 Supporting Living with Diabetes 
People are placed at the heart of diabetes care with their individual 

needs identified and met and feel supported and informed, able to 
manage the effects of diabetes. 

 
 Improving Information 

Patients, health professionals and service planners will have access 
to appropriate information to help them make informed decisions 

about care and treatment.  The public, the NHS, the third sector 
and the Welsh Government will have access to information on the 

outcomes that result from NHS Care. 
 

 

 

Tudalen 87



 

 
5 

 

 Targeting Research 

Access to research can lead to better outcomes for patients.  The 
NHS must promote research and ensure appropriate access to 

clinical trials. 
 

Each of the above themes is supported by specific priorities to deliver 
them. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Tudalen 88



 

 
6 

 

2 Demographic and epidemiology profile of diabetes 

in Aneurin Bevan University Health Board Area. 
 
This Section presents the demographic and epidemiology of diabetes 

within the population of Aneurin Bevan university Health Board.  It 
provides a summary of the contributing factors towards developing Type 

2 diabetes and the links with the high levels of deprivation across the 
area. 

 

A higher percentage of Aneurin Bevan University Health Board population 
live in deprived areas compared with the national population (Figure 1).  

  

 

Tudalen 89



 

 
7 

 

 

Deprivation 
 

The link between deprivation and poor health is well recognised.  People 
in the most deprived areas have higher levels of mental illness, obesity, 

hearing and sight problems, and long-term conditions, particularly chronic 
respiratory diseases, cardiovascular diseases and arthritis.  Diabetes in 

Wales is almost twice as high in the most deprived areas compared to the 
least deprived. 

 
Within the Health Board there are areas of deprivation, particularly in the 

valley areas of Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly and Torfaen.  88 out of the 369 
Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in the Health Board (24 per cent) are 

among the most deprived fifth in Wales with 72 (20 per cent) in the least 
deprived fifth.  However, within less deprived areas there are often 

pockets of hidden deprivation. Graph1 shows the deprivation levels across 

the 12 Neighbourhood Care Networks. 
 

BME groups experience higher levels of Type 2 diabetes, Newport has the 
largest BME group with significant pockets of deprivation. 

 
Deprivation levels across the 12 Aneurin Bevan Health Board 

Neighbourhood Care Networks  

 

(Source: Public Health Wales Observatory 2013) 
 

 
 

Tudalen 90



 

 
8 

 

Obesity 

 
In the 2011-12 Welsh Health Survey, 58 per cent of Welsh adults 

reported a weight and height classed as being overweight (BMI of 25 or 
greater) or obese (BMI of 30 or greater). In Aneurin Bevan Health Board 

population, 61% of adults are overweight or obese, and 25% are obese. 
This is significantly higher than the Wales average. 

 
Related statistics show low levels of fruit and vegetable consumption 

(used as a proxy for a healthy diet) and of physical activity, reflecting the 
two main behavioural determinants of weight gain. 

 
Within the Health Board area, these factors tend to be more prevalent in 

the more deprived areas. However, the recent analysis of obesity and 
overweight in children (measured in school at age 5) shows that Blaenau 

Gwent has a lower than expected level of child obesity, similar to the 

Wales average. 
 

From 2011-12 Welsh Health Survey – Local Authority level data in 
adults aged 16+ (-/+ = significant difference re Wales) 

 

 % who ate 

five portions 

of fruit and 

vegetables 

yesterday 

% who are 

active for 

at least 

30mins on 

at least 

five days in 

past week 

% overweight 

or obese 

% obese 

Caerphilly 29 (-) 28 64 (+) 27 (+) 

Blaenau Gwent 27 (-) 31 62 (+) 27 (+) 

Torfaen 30 26 (-) 63 (+) 28(+) 

Newport 35 30 56 19 (-) 

Monmouthshire 30 27 60 23 

 

Poor diet and sedentary lifestyle are major contributors to obesity and 
many cases of type 2 diabetes.  The proportion of adults not maintaining 

a healthy body weight is increasing in Wales and, despite stabilising in 
children, remains too high, as in many other countries.  The Welsh Health 

Survey in 2011-12 shows over half the adult population, and around a 
third of children, are classified as overweight or obese.  The Millennium 

Tudalen 91



 

 
9 

 

Cohort Survey found more than one in five Welsh three year olds were 

overweight.   
 

Lifestyle interventions prompting moderate weight loss together with an 
increase in physical activity can result in a more than 50% reduction in 

the risk of type 2 diabetes amongst at risk individuals. 
 

Across Wales the average levels of obesity were report at 20%.  Graph 2 
shows where the obesity levels are higher than the Welsh average across 

the 12 Neighbourhood Care Networks (NCNs).  The areas where they are 
higher is clearly reflective of the levels of deprivation within these areas 

as shown in Graph 1 above. 
 

Graph 2:  Percentage of Population across the 12 Aneurin Bevan 
University Health Board Networks who reported being obese 
 

 
(Source: Welsh Health Survey 2011-12) 

Hypertension (High Blood Pressure) 

Hypertension is linked to diabetes and obesity. Measurement of 

hypertension is one of the 9 health checks which are carried out annually 
for people with diabetes.  Graph 3 shows where patients across the NCNs 

have higher than the Welsh Average of hypertension.  Blood pressure 
lowering in people with diabetes reduces the risk of macrovascular and 

microvascular disease. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 92



 

 
10 

 

Graph 3: Percentage of Population with Reported Hypertension 

across 12 NCNs 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
(Source: Welsh Health Survey Data 2011-12) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 93



 

 
11 

 

3 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Diabetes 

Incidence Rates 
 
There are currently 36,323 patients on General Practice Registers across 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board which equates to 6.07% of the 
practices population.  Graph 4 below shows how these 36,323 patients 

are spread across Neighbourhood Care Network Areas and Table 1 shows 
the actual number of patients on Diabetes Registers. 

 
Graph 4: Percentage of Patients on Diabetes Registry by NCN 

 

  
(Source QOF Data 2012) 
Table 1 Number of Patients on Diabetes Registers across NCNs 

 

 

Neighbourhood Care 

Network 

% of 

Patients 
on DM 

Registers  

No. of 

Patients 
on DM 

Registers 

Blaenau Gwent East 7.04 2695 

Blaenau Gwent West 6.7 2348 

Caerphilly East 5.9 3542 

Caerphilly North 6.71 4620 

Caerphilly South 5.79 3220 

Monmouthshire North 5.92 3031 

Monmouthshire South 5.1 2389 

Newport Central 5.18 2505 

Newport East 6.03 2888 

Newport West 6 3131 

Torfaen North 6.68 3252 

Torfaen South 5.93 2702 

Total   36,323 

Tudalen 94



 

 
12 

 

The above graph and table shows the variations in the incidence of 

diabetes across Neighbourhood Care Network with Blaenau Gwent having 
the highest proportion of people with diabetes.  It should be noted that 

these variations are more significant at practice level, as these range from 
4.10% in a practice in North Monmouthshire area and 10.22% in a 

practice in Newport West. 
 

Management of Diabetes 
 

HbA1c measurement is one of the other 9 health checks carried out in 
primary care. HbA1c levels above 75mmol/mol is an indicator of poor 

diabetic control and management. 
 

Across the NCN networks there are 4577 (12.6%) of the patient on the 
diabetes registers whose HbA1c levels are above 75mmol/mol.  Graph 5 

shows how these patients are spread over the 12 NCNs.  

 
The term HbA1c refers to glycated haemoglobin. It develops when 

haemoglobin, a protein within red blood cells that carries oxygen 
throughout your body, joins with glucose in the blood, becoming 

'glycated'. 
 

By measuring glycated haemoglobin (HbA1c), clinicians are able to get an 
overall picture of what our average blood glucose levels have been over a 

period of weeks/months. 
 

For people with diabetes this is important as the higher the HbA1c, the 
greater the risk of developing diabetes-related complications. 

 
Graph 5: Number of People with diabetes with HbA1c > 

75mmol/mol by NCN area 

 
(Source: QOF Data 2012) 

Tudalen 95



 

 
13 

 

The management of HbA1c is primarily through good life style choices and 

appropriate use of medication therapies.  
 

85% of the 36,323 patients receive their care in primary care settings.   
 

All type 1 including children, young people and adults are managed in 
specialist services. 

 
Predicting Diabetes Incidence Rates 

 
The incidence of diabetes is increasing as the prevalence of obesity is 

rising; diabetes among adults in Wales is predicted to rise to 10.3% in 
2020 and 11.5% by 2030.  Graph 6 and table 2 shows what that increase 

will look like for the Health Board. 
 

Graph 6: Predicting Increase of Prevalence of Incidence of 

Diabetes in Aneurin Bevan University Health Board of the next 17 
years 

 

 
 

(source: Association of Public Health Observatories 2010) 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 96



 

 
14 

 

Table 2: Number of Patients predicted to have diabetes in the next 

17 years  
 

Predicting Increase in Prevalence of Incidence of Diabetes  

Neighbourhoods 2013 2020 2030 

Blaenau Gwent 5043 6,444 7,296 

Caerphilly  11382 14,966 17,429 

Monmouthshire  5420 7,891 9,232 

Newport  8524 11,549 13,200 

Torfaen  5954 7,788 8,730 

Total 36323 48638 55887 

 

These predictions are based on current patient list sizes and do not take 
into account any other variables other than the predicted increases as 

outlined above. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 97



 

 
15 

 

4 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Vision 
 
Our Vision for diabetes care is aligned with the Welsh Governments for 

the overall population outcomes we want to achieve: better health for all 
and reduced inequalities in health.  Reducing the impact of diabetes on 

the lives of people in Wales will contribute significantly to achieving these 
outcomes: 

 

For the population we want: 
 

 People of all ages to have a minimised risk of developing 
diabetes 

 Where diabetes does occur, an excellent chance of living a 
long and healthier life, wherever they live in Gwent 

 
Organisational Profile 

 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB) was established in 2009 

as an integrated Health Board.  The organisation is responsible for the 
planning and delivery of a wide range of primary, community and 

secondary care health services for the population of Blaenau Gwent, 
Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen.  Together with an 

estimate of people living in South Powys and other areas that use the 

Health Board for acute services, the patient population served is close to 
600,000.  The Board serves a diverse range of population groups with 

different health needs and sizable inequities in health within and between 
localities.  Service planning and delivery also has to take account of a mix 

across rural, urban, and valley areas, and a high proportion of elderly 
people.  The Health Board employs approximately 14,000 staff. 

 
On occasions primary care and acute services provide cross boarder 

arrangements for patients outside of the Aneurin Bevan University Health 
Board Area. 

 
Clinical Futures Strategy 

 
Following extensive local consultation Aneurin Bevan University Health 

Board’s Clinical Future Strategy was launched in 2007.  Clinical Futures 

sets out the Health Board’s vision for the development of sustainable 
services that can provide appropriate access and excellent standards of 

care for patients.  It is a plan that bridges primary, community and 
hospitals services, promoting services in or close to home, along with high 

quality hospital services available when needed.  Hospital provision will be 
focused on a Specialist and Critical Care Centre, enhanced Local General 

Hospitals, Local General Hospitals and smaller community facilities.  
Primary and community services will be enhanced to re-balance care 

Tudalen 98



 

 
16 

 

between primary, community, secondary and tertiary services to ensure 

care is provided close to home where appropriate. 
 

Current Diabetes Provision 
 

The majority of people with diabetes (85%) are managed in primary care; 
meaning that currently about 15% would need specialist care due to the 

complex nature of their diabetes, or for management of the complications 
related to diabetes.  

Children & Young People receive all their care from specialist diabetes 

services. 

The National Diabetes Inpatient Audit has highlighted that 20% of 
hospitalised patients have diabetes. The majority (90%) of these are 

admitted for reasons other than their diabetes; but diabetes remains a 
significant co-morbidity in them, and about 60% of these patients will 

need input from the specialist diabetes team. 

 

Table 3:  Diabetes Services across Aneurin Bevan University 

Health Board 

 
Level 1  - Primary 
Care  

Level 2 - Local General Hospital Level 3  - Specialist & 
Critical Care 

 Prevention  
 Diagnosis 

 Care Planning 
 9 Health Checks 
 Routine care 

clinics 
 Management of 

diabetes  
 Structured Patient 

Education 
 

 In-Patient Beds & Specialist 
Clinics 

 Patients with complications 
 Rapid Access Clinics 
 Specialist Diabetic Team hub 
 Joint Ante natal - Diabetes clinics 
 Emergency care but not including 

Critical Care 
 Consultant hub 
 Transitional Clinics (Paediatrics – 

Adults) 
 Education  
 Care Planning  

 Diabetic Foot Care 
 Low eGFR/dialysis patients 
 Uncontrolled type1/adolescent 

diabetes 
 Insulin Pumps 
 CYP Diabetes Services  

 In-Patient Beds 
 Renal Support 

 Intensive Care 
 Vascular Surgery 
 Critical care for patients 

with ketoacidosis 
 Diabetic Obstetrics 

 In-patient beds for CYP 
with complex diabetes and 
at diagnosis 
 

 
 

Pivotal to the success of the Clinical Futures Strategy is the delivery of 

high quality and accessible primary care services.  This is to ensure better 
access to and integration with primary and specialist services so we 

continue to shift resources from hospital to primary care services and 

preventative care.  

Tudalen 99



 

 
17 

 

 

Whilst it is essential that we develop and deliver care as safely and as 
locally as possible, it is a priority for the Health Board to ensure that there 

is a consistency and equity of service provision across the five local 
authority areas.   Neighbourhood Care Networks are ideally placed to 

drive improvements in patient pathways as all patient care, with 
exception of emergency care, begins and ends in primary care.  Across 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board there are 89 general practices 
linked to the 12 Neighbourhood Care Networks. 

 
Diabetes mellitus (DM) is one of the common endocrine diseases affecting 

all age groups with over one million people in the UK having the 
condition.  Effective control and monitoring can reduce mortality and 

morbidity.  Much of the management and monitoring of people with 
diabetes, particularly patient with type 2 diabetes, is undertaken by the 

GP and members of the primary care team. 

 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board aims to ensure that the resources 

of the 89 practices are utilised safely and effectively to deliver high 
quality care to people with diabetes in the community through up-skilling 

primary care staff through an integrated diabetes service model with 
access to specialist clinicians for advice and education. 

 
Type 1 diabetes is not linked to lifestyle behaviours and is one of the most 

common chronic diseases in childhood, with significant impact on health, 
lifestyle and life expectance.  Whilst prevention is not possible, the active 

management of care can help prevent complications and ensure children 
and young people with type 1 are able to lead full, active lives. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 100



 

 
18 

 

5 Drivers for Change  
 
The Welsh Government estimates that there are currently around 175,000 

adults in Wales being treated for diabetes.  This equates to approximately 
7% of adults in Wales, 16% of those over 65.  The incidence of diabetes 

is increasing as the prevalence of obesity is rising; diabetes among adults 
in Wales is predicted to rise to 10.3% in 2020 and 11.5% by 2030. 

(Together for Health – Diabetes Delivery Plan) 

 
Services for diabetes already account for 10% of all NHS expenditure in 

the UK and in 2009-2010 this amounted to £500 million in Wales.  
Applying this formula to Aneurin Bevan University Health Boards annual 

budget would equate to £99m being spent on diabetes care.  The current 
rate of increase in spend on diabetes is totally unsustainable, so action 

must be taken now to address this, focusing on prevention and condition 
self-management.  Funding must be spent effectively for the benefit of 

people at risk of, or with, diabetes and managed within budgets that 
reflect increasing financial constraints. (Together for Health – Diabetes 

Delivery Plan) 
 

To improve individual health outcomes and ensure the sustainability of 
our health and social care services, it is essential that people take 

responsibility for their health and well-being and attention is given to the 

environmental factors that can assist healthier lifestyles.  Improvements 
in health have not been achieved equally for all people; people living in 

areas a few miles apart may face a 10 year difference in life expectancy 
and very different chances of developing and dying from diabetes.  The 

Health Board needs to focus their activity on narrowing the gap in 
healthcare outcomes between their most and least deprived communities 

in their local populations. (Together for Health – Diabetes Delivery Plan) 
 

Strategic actions to prevent diabetes (type 2) and delay the onset of 
complications associated with diabetes by supporting people to live a 

healthy lifestyle and make healthy choices are set out in the Aneurin 
Bevan University Health Board Public Health Strategic Framework 2011-

2015 ‘A Healthier Gwent for All’ and include actions to: 
 

 Reduce the percentage of adults who smoke 

 Reduce the percentage of children & young people and adults who 
are obese 

 Reduce the percentage of adults who report drinking alcohol above 
recommended guidelines 

 Increase the percentage of children & young people and adults who 
are physically active 

 Improving health literacy by equipping and empowering people with 
the knowledge and skills they need to navigate the health system 

and to take steps to improve their own health 

Tudalen 101



 

 
19 

 

 

 

6 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Approach 
to Tackling Diabetes 
 
In response to the “Together for Health – a Diabetes Delivery Plan” 

(2013), the Health Board, together with its partners, has produced this 
detailed Local Service Delivery Plan to demonstrate a systematic 

approach to progressive implementation of the Diabetes National Service 
Framework and the Diabetes Delivery Plan. 

 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Boards Diabetes Planning and 

Delivery Group 
 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Diabetes Planning & Delivery 

Group is the “Together for Health – Diabetes Transformation Group” 
which has been established in response to Delivery Plan. 

 
This Group will build on the previous groups work and develop and 

oversee a programme of transformation to improve Diabetes Services 
across the whole pathway of care.  The Group’s objectives are set out to 

deliver Welsh Government requirements and to ensure links with the 
strategic objectives of partner organisations and the Welsh Government. 

 
The ABUHB Diabetes Transformation Group aims to deliver improvements 

in the Three key areas set out in the Diabetes Driver Diagram (Appendix 
1) as followings: 

 
 Optimise Patient Management in Primary Care 

 Appropriate Access to Specialist Support Services 

 Improve Management of In-Patients with Acute Episodes 
 

The oversight, development and implementation of the Diabetes Local 
Delivery Plan is an iterative process which aims to: 

 
 Put effective plans in place to help prevent avoidable Type 2 

Diabetes; 
 Plan high quality, effective, person-centred care for anyone affected 

by diabetes 
 Provide high quality detection and treatment in primary care and for 

diabetic complications in specialist services 
 Improve health outcomes, quality of services and the individual’s 

experience 
 

 

 
 

Tudalen 102



 

 
20 

 

Governance Structure 

 
A programme of work has commenced to meet the Health Board’s 

responsibilities under the Delivery Plan and the following Governance 
Structure has been established to support and monitor progress and 

implementation, as follows: 
 

 
Governance & Delivery Structure: 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

The Together for Health Diabetes Transformation Group meet on a 

monthly basis and has representation from the Divisions: 

 
 Primary Care & Networks – Primary Care & Medicines 

Management 
 Unscheduled Care – Diabetes Directorate 

 Family & Therapies – (Child Health), (Dietetics) and (Podiatry) 
 Aneurin Bevan University Health Board/Gwent Local Public Health 

Team 
 

The Diabetes Transformation Reference Group meets on a quarterly basis 
and has wide clinical, patient and Third Sector representations.  

 

Aneurin Bevan University Health 

Board 

Board 

Together for Health – 

Diabetes Transformation 

Group 
Welsh National 

Strategic Group 

Diabetes Transformation 

Reference Group 

Podiatry 

Directorate 

Family & 

Therapies 

Division 

Unscheduled Care 

Division Diabetes 

Directorate 

Neighbourhood 

Care Networks 

Tudalen 103



 

 
21 

 

To support the implementation of the Delivery Plan a series of Task & 

Finish Groups will be set up according to priority.  It is intended that these 
groups will have clearly defined task specific actions and will only meet 

two or three times to complete the action.  This is to ensure timely 
delivery, leadership and maximise resources. 

 
The Together for Health Diabetes Transformation Group has developed a 

Driver Diagram (Appendix 1 underpinned by a reporting framework 
(Appendix 2)) to measure performance of the Aneurin Bevan University 

Health Board Diabetes Delivery Plan (Appendix 3).    
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Tudalen 104



 

 
22 

 

 

7 Performance Measures/Management  
 

The Welsh Government’s Diabetes Delivery Plan (2013) contained an 
outline description of the national metrics that Health Boards and other 

organisations will publish: 
 

 Outcome indicates which will demonstrate success in 

delivering positive changes in outcome for the population of 
Wales; and  

 NHS assurance measures which will quantify an organisation’s 
progress with implementing key areas of the delivery plan. 

 
All of the Diabetes Transformation Group’s plans incorporate all key 

performance outcomes, NHS Measures and actions for delivery to meet 
expectations of the Together for Health – Diabetes Delivery Plan (2013).  

Details of The Welsh Government’s measures are shown in Appendix 4 
attached. 

 
Progress with these outcome indicators/measures will form the basis of 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s report on the Diabetes Delivery 
Plan.  We will produce an initial progress report in March 2014 and a full 

Annual Report in March 2015 and March 2016. 

 
We will also report progress against this Local Delivery Plan and its 

milestones annually to the public via our website. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 105



 

 
23 

 

8 The Priorities for 2013-2016 
 
This Section provides a summary of the detailed Aneurin Bevan University 

Health Diabetes Delivery Plan which is shown in Appendix 3 attached.  
The framework for the summary has been developed against Aneurin 

Bevan University Health Board’s Diabetes Driver Diagram (Appendix 1). 
 

This Diabetes Local Delivery Plan includes actions for each of the priorities 

identified within the Welsh Government’s Diabetes Delivery Plan (2013) 
and additional actions identified by the Diabetes Transformation Group. 

 
The following tables summarise priorities and key actions against each 

Delivery Theme of the Diabetes Delivery Plan together with identified 
priority areas of the Diabetes Transformation Group. 

 
It should be noted that the National Diabetes Strategic Group will also be 

identifying priority areas, indicative January 2014 which Health Board’s 
will need to action.  It is anticipated that our priority areas will mirror 

those of the Strategic Group. 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen 106



 

 
24 

 

 
 
 
 
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aims: 
 

 Reduce incidence of Type 2 Diabetes 
 

 Provide Diabetes Education to newly diagnosed patients and 
information for awareness raising of the risks of diabetes 

 
 Every patient with diabetes will receive annual reviews against 

standard health checks 

 
 Address actions around National Diabetes Primary Care Audit 

 
 Optimise the use and management of medication 

 

 Provide specialist support to Neighbourhood Care Networks 
 

 Every diabetic patient to have a personalised care plan 
 
 Implement Diabetes Integrated Service Model  

 

Optimising Patient Management in Primary Care 
 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Vision: 
 

 Improved public awareness of the risk factors for, and 
dangers of, developing diabetes and the importance of early 

presentation to primary care 
 

 To put patients first and to provide timely and quality 

diabetes management as locally as possible and in the most 
appropriate environment for the patient. 

 
 Supporting patients to improve self-management of their 

diabetes through structured educational programmes  

 
 To improve clinical outcomes and patient experience 

through having a skilled workforce in primary care to 
manage people with complex diabetes and improve timely 

access to specialist advice  
 
 To deliver high quality and equitable diabetes services 

across Aneurin Bevan University Health Board to provide 
seamless care on the patients journey between primary 

care and specialist services  
 
 

 

Tudalen 107



 

 
25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

WHAT ARE WE DOING IN PRIMARY CARE? 

 Improved public awareness of the risk factors for, and dangers 

of, developing diabetes and the importance of early presentation 
to primary care. 

 
 Implement all levels of the Wales Obesity Pathway. 

 

 Progress with adult weight management services within the 
Health Board.  

 

 Communities First areas are being supported by the dietetic 
service to provide ‘Foodwise’.  

 
 The BHF project in Torfaen has now ceased with the cessation of 

the fixed term grant, but the community programme ‘Total 

Health 2’ will be continuing to run until March 2014, and is being 
adapted to support young people not in employment, education 

or training as part of the three year LIFT project. 
 
 Torfaen schools are continuing to use the BHF educational 

resources. A reconfiguration of adult weight management 
services across the whole of the Health Board has now been 

agreed and funded. This will change the way patients access 
services, with all patients entering services through a single 
point of access and assessment. This will then determine 

whether patients access level 2 (group education or a 1:1 
specific dietetic programme) or level 3 (a multidisciplinary clinic 

involving a doctor, psychologist and dietician) services. The full 
service will be available from April 2014, when all staff are in 

post; but all patients referred to dietetics or the specialist 
weight management service will be following this pathway by 
that date, rolled out across each County Borough in turn, 

starting with Torfaen in December 2013. This new service will 
also continue the ‘drop in‘ weight management support for 

pregnant women, complementing the obesity element of the 
new maternity services pathway. 

 

 The Public Health team is also leading the development of a 
Gwent wide child obesity strategy, involving both the Health 

Board and other partners. Completion of this, with agreement 
by partners, is expected towards the end of 2014. 

 

 The child obesity prevention and management programme 
‘MEND/My Time’ is being reviewed by Public Health Wales, 

however a similar programme is expected to continue to be 
provided through the dietetic service and Local Authorities. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Tudalen 108



 

 
26 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WHAT ARE WE DOING IN PRIMARY CARE? (Continued) 

 

 Newly diagnosed individuals (Type 2 diabetes) will be referred to 
Diabetes Structured Education programmes at the point of 
diagnosis.  The Health Board aims to ensure that all individuals 

have access to this education within 9 months of diagnosis. 
 

 Develop and implement a rolling programme of Type 2 Diabetes 
Structured Education to ensure equity and accessibility for 
patients. 

 

 Raising awareness of Type 1 diabetes in primary care to ensure 
early diagnosis. 

 
 Newly diagnosed individuals Type 1 diabetes (together with their 

parents or guardians and schools) receive education in relation 
to the management of their diabetes.  Currently there is no 
structured education programme available however we are 

working collaboratively on an All Wales basis to identify and 
implement an evidenced based programme. 

 
 Not all individuals can or want to access a structured education 

programme, therefore we are working in partnership to identify 

and develop innovative ways to providing education that 
supports individuals with their self-management and life style 

choices.  
 

 The National Exercise Referral Scheme has been in place for a 

number of years and we aim to improve the referral and uptake 
of these sessions.  Physical activity is proven to be of benefit to 
individuals with diabetes in supporting them to make good life 

style choices and address the issues of obesity. 
 

 Implement the actions from the National Primary Care Diabetes 

Audit 

 

 We aim to improve the confidence levels of primary care 

practitioners through integrated working with Specialist Services 
to support primary care in early diagnosis, management of 

diabetes and awareness raising of the risks and symptoms 
associated with diabetes. 

 
 We are developing a Primary Care Dash Board with key 

indicators to support the implementation and monitoring of 

general practice data to support the transformation of diabetes 
primary care management as outlined in ‘Our Healthy Future’. 

 
 

 

Tudalen 109



 

 
27 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

WHAT ARE WE DOING IN PRIMARY CARE? (Continued) 

 We have developed and are implementing a Diabetes Medicine 

Management Programme to optimise the use of medication in 
the management of diabetes to implement NICE Guidelines and 

improve the patient outcomes and quality of life. Improve 
adherence to medication compliance to deliver optimisation of 
medicine therapies, in all service areas. 

 

 Enhance collaboratively working to utilise the skills and expertise 
of the Third Sector to provide high quality reliable advice on how 

to reduce risks of diabetes and what care to expect. 
 

 In collaboration with our independent contractors, general 
practices and pharmacy develop and implement mechanisms to 

improve the accessibility of education and advice services in the 
community to widen the access to appropriate to support to 
patients in primary care. 

 
 We are working to develop an Integrated Diabetes Service with 

the aim of increasing the skills within primary care to identify 
complications in diabetes early and provide telephone and email 
advice from Specialist Services at the point of need to support 

the management of the patient in the most appropriate setting in 
a safe and timely manner. 

 
 We will be implementing personalised care plans to all patients 

on the Diabetes Register. 

 
 We aim to ensure that all patients receive the key indicator 

measurements annually as set out in the National Diabetes 
Audit. 

 

 Developing a business case for the provision of Diabetes 
Specialist Nurses within Primary Care to improve the skills of 
primary care practitioners and optimise the use of medicine 

therapies within appropriate settings to support self-
management and improve clinical outcomes for patients.  

 
 We are currently carrying out a review of patients on diabetes 

registers across primary care to identify those who have poorly 

controlled blood glucose levels.  This will result in a review of 
medication and lifestyle/advice to optimise medicine 

management to improve management of diabetes and quality of 
life for the patients. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 110



 

 
28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHAT ARE WE DOING IN PRIMARY CARE? (Continued) 
 
 

 A review of the current pre-conception information programme for 
all women of childbearing age on diabetes registers will be carried 

out to ensure that counselling and information is provided in all 
elements of the patient pathway. 

 
 Deliver follow-up clinics in primary care settings to ensure patients 

are seen at appropriate intervals according to their clinical needs 

and as close to home as possible 
 

Tudalen 111



 

 
29 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delivering Appropriate Access to Specialist 
Support Services 

 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Vision: 
 
 Children & young people will receive all of their diabetic 

care in specialist services 
 

 Improve successful and patient experience of pregnancy 

outcomes in women with diabetes 
 

 Equity of service and provision to hard to reach BME groups 
to improve their health care outcomes due to diabetes  

 

 Increased proportion of people who have well managed 
diabetes as defined by NICE/All Wales targets for glycaemic 

control, blood pressure and lipids 
 
 Reduce or delay the onset of complications associated with 

diabetes such as eye, foot, kidney and vascular 
complications and improve the management of these 

conditions 
 

 

Aims 
 

 Appropriate provision of specialist Pump Services for Children and 
Young People (CYP) and Adults 
 

 Deliver the actions around the National Paediatric Diabetes Audit 
and National In-Patient Diabetes Audit 

 
 Deliver high quality transitional arrangements for CYP into Adult 

services 

 
 Reduce the number of diabetes related eye, foot, kidney and 

vascular complications and nephropathy  
 

Tudalen 112



 

 
30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHAT ARE WE DOING IN SPECIALIST SERVICES? 
 

 Continue to evaluate and implement a specialist pump service for 
CYP and adults. 

 

 Implement the actions from the National Paediatric Diabetes Audit 
and National In-Patient Diabetes Audit. 

 
 Support the pilot of the Patient Experience of Diabetes Services 

(PEDS) in adult services. 

 

 Implement Patient Reported Experience Measures (PREM) in 
children & young people’s services. 

 
 Evaluate current transitional arrangements for CYP into adult 

services and measure against best practice to identify any gaps or 
needs. 

 

 We are implementing the “Feet First” Pathway across all our 
hospital sites.  This will support the early identification of 

complications associated with vascular and feet to ensure 
appropriate multi-disciplinary management and interventions are 
carried out in a timely and safe manner. 

 
 We aim to develop and implement a Diabetes Patient Pathway 

across primary care and secondary care which will include all 
aspects of a patient’s journey with diabetes. 

 

 A review of the current pre-conception information programme for 
all women of childbearing age on diabetes registers will be carried 

out to ensure that counselling and information is provided in all 
elements of the patient pathway. 

 
 Carry out a review of non-diabetic clinician education programme to 

identify gaps and develop a standard approach to ensure consistent 

implementation across all hospital sites. 
 

 Work with primary care and secondary care to identify innovative 
ways to engage with and support BME groups in the identification 
and management of diabetes. 

 

 Increase the availability of urgent specialist clinic slots. 
 

 Carry out a detailed review and assessment of the provision of 

Diabetes Specialist Nurses to identify needs to ensure a fully skilled 
and equitable workforce deliver high quality services across Aneurin 

Bevan University Health Board to meet the needs of patients. 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen 113



 

 
31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Improve the Patients Experience and Care whilst an 
In-patient having an acute episode 

 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board’s Vision: 

 
 Improve the patients journey and experience of diabetes by 

reducing the number of emergency admissions to hospital; 
readmissions to hospital; and average length of stay  

 
 High quality equitable delivery of diabetic services across 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

 

 

Aims: 
 

 To have educated non-diabetic clinicians in identifying people with 
diabetes and supporting the management of their diabetes whilst in 
hospital  

 
 To have high quality in-patient services that demonstrate best 

practice in the management of people with diabetes 
 

WHAT ARE WE DOING TO IMPROVE THE PATIENT’S EXPERIENCE 

AND CARE WHILE AN IN-PATIENT IS HAVING AN ACUTE 
EPISODE? 

 
 We aim to extend the good practice identified in Nevill Hall Hospital’s 

Diabetes In-Patient Team (multi-disciplinary) model across the Royal 

Gwent Hospital and Ysybty Ystrad Fawr to reduce the length of stay 
when patients are admitted to hospital with acute episodes other 

than the primary cause being their diabetes. 
 

 Fully implement the actions from the National In-Patient Diabetes 

Audit. 
 

 Provide education, advice and professional support to increase skills 

and knowledge within primary care to manage diabetes to reduce 
number of admissions, readmissions and length of stay. 
 

 Provide a rolling programme of education to healthcare professionals 
on the identification and management of people with diabetes when 

experiencing an acute episode which is not associated with their 
diabetes.  

 

Tudalen 114



“Together for Health “ Diabetes Transformation Group – Driver Diagram 
 

          

 

 

 

 

    

                                                                                                                                                        

 

Key Actions 
Implement all levels of the Wales Obesity Pathway 

Promote better public awareness of the risk factors for, and dangers of, developing diabetes and the importance of early presentation to 
primary care 

Utilise the third sector to provide high quality reliable advice on how to reduce the risks of diabetes and what care to expect 

Work with primary care and allied healthcare professionals to raise their awareness of the risks and symptoms of diabetes, and explore 
innovative approaches for early detection  

Deliver diabetes structured education to all children & young people with diabetes 

Provide accessible educational and support services via local pharmacies, such as vascular risk assessments, lifestyle advice, and annual 
contracted "community pharmacy delivered" public health campaigns 

At diagnosis, provide all individuals with evidence based education for their type of diabetes, and sign post them to  Structured Diabetes 
Education Programme 

Achieve QOF targets for the number of patients referred to Structured Diabetes Education within 9 months of diagnosis 

Work with partners in Local Government, education, community programmes and the third sector to find innovative solutions to delivering 
diabetes education that links to lifestyle change support programmes in people's communities; such as walking clubs, peer support and 
exercise referral 

Provide pre-conception counselling for all women of childbearing age on diabetes registers 

Ensure that GPs, practice nurses and school nurses are aware of type 1 diabetes in schools and develop management systems to support 
individual pupils to play a full part at school 

Plan and deliver a recognised Structured Diabetes Education service that meets the necessary recommendations for quality and audit, which 
is in line with NICE guidance 

Ensure culturally appropriate information is available to patients, families and carers in the appropriate language 

All people with diabetes to have a personalised care in place 

All diabetic patients to receive all key indicator measurements annually as referred to in the National Diabetes Audit  

Work with the third sector to ensure effective signposting to sources of information and support  

Develop and implement Community Pharmacy & Medicine Management Programme 

Develop and implement Diabetes Integrated Service Model 

Key Theme  Priority Area 

  

 

O
p

ti
m

is
e 

P
at

ie
n

t 
M

an
ag

em
e

n
t 

in
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

C
ar

e
 

 Reduce incidence of Type 2 Diabetes 
 

 Provide Diabetes Education to newly 
diagnosed patients and information for 
awareness raising of the risks of diabetes 
 

 Every patient with Diabetes will receive 
Annual Reviews against standard health 
checks 

 Address actions around National  
Diabetes Primary Care Audit 

 Optimise the use and management of 
Medication  

 Provide specialist support to 
Neighbourhood Care Networks 

 Every diabetic patient to have a 
personalised care plan 

 Implement Diabetes Integrated Service 
Model  

Provide insulin pump service in line NICE guidance 

Implement all key diabetes care processes referred to in the National Paediatric Diabetes Audit 

Develop a transitional care plan to ensure appropriate and seamless transfer of care from paediatric to adult diabetes services 

Participation in all aspects of the National Diabetes Audit (including the Pregnancy Care, Foot care and Patient Experience parts of the 
expanded audit programme) and take appropriate action to ensure continuous quality improvement 

Ensure that all healthcare professionals involved in diabetes care are educated in the management of diabetic nephropathy and recognition 
of non diabetic renal disease 

In-patients with a diabetes related foot problem, or found to have one following initial assessment, should be referred to a multi-disciplinary 
diabetic foot care team within 24 hours of admission 

Implement "putting feet first" pathway and quality standards set for prevention and management of diabetic foot disease 

Lead Person 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

John Holland 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mike Curson 

 
 
 
 

Leo Pinto and Rebekah 
Price & Davida Hawkes 

Rebekah Price & Davida 
Hawkes 

Lance Reed and Leo 
Pinto 

Leo Pinto 

Lance Reed 

 

Leo Pinto 
Fully implement National Diabetes Audit in-patient guidelines 

In-patients with newly diagnosed diabetes should be assessed by a multi-disciplinary team within 48-72 hours of admission 
and their diabetes care should be overseen by the team 

Establish and continue a rolling healthcare professional education programme e.g. Think Glucose 

Key Theme  Priority Area 

 Im
p

ro
ve

 

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

-p
at

ie
n

ts
 w

it
h

 

d
ia

b
et

e
s 

w
it

h
 

ac
u

te
 e

p
is

o
d

es
  

 Non Diabetic clinicians appropriately 
trained in identifying diabetic patients 

 Reduce number of emergency 
admissions to hospitals; readmissions 
and average length of stay 

  Address actions around National 
Diabetes In-Patient Audit  

 Equity of service provision across ABHB  

Key Theme  Priority Area 

  

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e

 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s  Provisions of specialist pump services 

 Address actions around National 
Paediatric Diabetes Audit 

 Clearly adopted transition arrangements 
in place for children & young adults 

 Reduce the number of diabetes related 
eye, foot, kidney and vascular 
complications and nephropathy 

Patient Experience 

T
udalen 115



APPENDIX 2

Theme Outcomes Key 

Themes

Objectives Lead Division Responsible Lead Timescales Current Position 

(RAG Rating) for this 

reporting period All children & young people with newly diagnosed diabetes are seen within 24 hours by a paediatric specialist with their on going care delivered by a 

multidisciplinary team

Family & Therapies Rebekah Price Jan-14

All children & young people with suspected diabetes have immediate same-day referral to a specialist paediatric diabetes team Family & Therapies & Primary Care Davida Hawkes Feb-14

Implement all key diabetes care processes referred to in the National Paediatric Diabetes Audit Family & Therapies Davida Hawkes Oct-14

Deliver diabetes structured education to all children & young people with diabetes Family & Therapies & Primary Care Rebekah Price Dec-14

Have appropriate out-of-hours phone advice services to support children & young people, their parents or guardians and clinical staff Family & Therapies Davida Hawkes Achieved 

Provide insulin pump service in line NICE guidance Family & Therapies & Primary Care Sian Millar Mar-15

Ensure that GPs, practice nurses and school nurses are aware of type 1 diabetes in schools and develop management systems to support individual pupils to 

play a full part at school

Family & Therapies, Primary Care Rebekah Price Mar-14

Develop a transitional care plan to ensure appropriate and seamless transfer of care from paediatric to adult diabetes services Family & Therapies, Unscheduled Care Davida Hawkes Achieved

Through the Wales Paediatric Diabetes Interest Group (Brecon Group) establish a Quality Assurance Programme for paediatric diabetes services Family & Therapies Nicola Kelly 2016

Implement all levels of the Wales Obesity Pathway Local Pulbic Health Team Jane Layzell Apr-14

Work with partners to identify, audit and implement local strategies, with clearly stated population outcomes and performance measures to prevent 

diabetes, as outlined in 'Our Healthy Future'

All Divisions Jane Layzell Apr-14

Promote better public awareness of the risk factors for, and dangers of, developing diabetes and the importance of early presentation to primary care All Divisions John Holland Ongoing

Utilise the third sector to provide high quality reliable advice on how to reduce the risks of diabetes and what care to expect All Divisions John Holland Ongoing

Provide accessible educational and support services via local pharmacies, such as vascular risk assessments, lifestyle advice, and annual contracted 

"community pharmacy delivered" public health campaigns

All Divisions John Holland Ongoing

At diagnosis, provide all individuals with evidence based education for their type of diabetes, and sign post them to  Structured Diabetes Education 

Programme

Primary Carer & Networks John Holland Mar-14

Achieve QOF targets for the number of patients referred to Structured Diabetes Education within 9 months of diagnosis Primary Care & Networks John Holland Mar-14

Work with partners in Local Government, education, community programmes and the third sector to find innovative solutions to delivering diabetes 

education that links to lifestyle change support programmes in people's communities; such as walking clubs, peer support and exercise referral

Primary Care & Networks John Holland Mar-15

Work with primary care and allied healthcare professionals to raise their awareness of the risks and symptoms of diabetes, and explore innovative 

approaches for early detection 

All Divisions John Holland Ongoing to 

March 15

Participation in all aspects of the National Diabetes Audit (including the Pregnancy Care, Foot care and Patient Experience parts of the expanded audit 

programme) and take appropriate action to ensure continuous quality improvement

All Divisions John Holland Rolling 

Programme

Fully implement National Diabetes Audit in-patient guidelines Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto Mar-14

Provide pre-conception counselling for all women of childbearing age on diabetes registers Primary Care & Unscheduled Care John Holland Jun-14

Ensure that all healthcare professionals involved in diabetes care are educated in the management of diabetic nephropathy and recognition of non diabetic 

renal disease

Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto Sep-14

In-patients with a diabetes related foot problem, or found to have one following initial assessment, should be referred to a multi-disciplinary diabetic foot 

care team within 24 hours of admission

Podiatry Directorate Lance Reed Mar-15

Implement "putting feet first" pathway and quality standards set for prevention and management of diabetic foot disease Podiatry Directorate Mar-15

Review and refresh Diabetic Retinopathy Screening Service Wales service to ensure that it achieves the best outcomes for all patients DRSS Wales WG Ongoing

In-patients with newly diagnosed diabetes should be assessed by a multi-disciplinary team within 48-72 hours of admission and their diabetes care should 

be overseen by the team

Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto Oct-14

Establish and continue a rolling healthcare professional education programme Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto Apr-14

Ensure provision of an insulin pump service in line with NICE guidance Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto Achieved 

Ensure culturally appropriate information is available to patients, families and carers in the appropriate language All Divisions John Holland Ongoing

Plan and deliver a recognised Structured Diabetes Education service that meets the necessary recommendations for quality and audit, which is in line with 

NICE guidance

All Divisions John Holland Ongoing

All people with diabetes to have a personalised care in place Unscheduled Care & Primary Care Leo Pinto & John 

Holland 

Mar-15

All diabetic patients to receive all key indicator measurements annually as referred to in the National Diabetes Audit primary Care & Networks  John Holland  Mar-14

Develop and implement Community Pharmacy & Medicine Management of diabetes within the community Primary Care & Networks & Medicine 

Management

John Holland & 

Mike Curson 

Ongoing

WG Work with NWIS to implement national diabetes patient management system across Local Health Boards All Divisions All Leads Ongoing

ABHB 

Board

Health Boards to publish regular and easy to understand information about the effectiveness of their diabetes services All Divisions All Leads Ongoing

ABHB 

Board

Work with the third sector to ensure effective signposting to sources of information and support All Divisions All Leads Ongoing

All Aims Work with Diabetes Research Network to secure research and development funding for diabetes All Divisions All Leads Ongoing

All Aims Encourage more people with diabetes to participate in research activity All Divisions All Leads Ongoing

Su
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
Li

vi
n

g 
w

it
h

 

D
ia

b
e

te
s

Public able to make effective choices about their 

care based on regularly updated information on the 

effectiveness of diabetes services

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Increased proportion of individuals who understand 

the affect of a new diagnosis of diabetes and start 

effective self-management of the disease 

D
e

te
ct

in
g 

D
ia

b
e

te
s 

Q
u

ic
kl

y

Increased and improved research activity resulting 

in improved healthcare outcomes for people with 

diabetesTa
rg

e
ti

n
g 

R
e

se
ar

ch

(October 2013) - Together for Health - Diabetes Delivery Plan - Diabetes Transformation Group Progress Reporting Plan 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g 
P

e
o

p
le (1)   Children & young people lead healthier and 

more active lives as a result of improved glycaemia 

control                                                            (2)   A 

reduction in the proportion of children & young 

people with DKA at diagnosis                                                             

(3)   A reduction in the proportion of children & 

young people admitted for diabetes related 

complications (DKA and Hypoglycaemia)

P
re

ve
n

ti
n

g 
D

ia
b

e
te

s (1) Reduced incidence of Type 2 diabetes                                                               

(2) Reduced inequality gap for incidence of diabetes 

across all age groups 

(1)  Reduction in number of emergency admissions 

to hospital; readmissions to hospitals; and average 

length of stay                     (2)  Reduction in number 

of diabetes related eye, foot, kidney and vascular 

complications                                                 (3)  

Improved successful pregnancy outcomes in women 

with diabetes                                             (4)  Reduction 

in inequity gap for health care outcomes due to 

diabetes, with special emphasis on BME group                                              

(5)  Increase the proportion of people who have well 

managed diabetes as defined by NICE/All Wales 

targets for glycaemia control, blood pressure and 

lipidsD
e

liv
e

ri
n

g 
Fa

st
, E

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 C

ar
e

 

(1)  Increase the proportion of people with type 1 

and type 2 diabetes who achieve effective self-

management of the disease                                                      

(2) Increase in the number of patients having well 

controlled blood sugar levels                                                                 

(3)  Reduction in number of glycaemia emergencies 

as a result of diabetes

T
udalen 116



APPENDIX 3

1

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes

Lead Division/s Responsible Lead Actions Timescales Baseline

1.1

All children & young people with newly diagnosed diabetes are seen within 24 hours by a paediatric specialist 

with their on going care delivered by a multidisciplinary team

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies

Nicola Kelly & Dr 

Rebekah Price

Clarification required  on the term of 'Paediatric 

Specialist'.  Jan-14

If this term means Paediatrician then this is 

in place and is supported with 'on call' cover 

1.2

All children & young people with suspected diabetes have immediate same-day referral to a specialist paediatric 

diabetes team 

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies & 

Primary Care & Networks

Barbara Cannito & Dr 

Davida Hawkes & John 

Holland 

Links will be made to primary care division to ensure 

that all GPs are aware of the need to refer 

immediately to Diabetes Specialist Team Feb-14

Same day referral in place.  If' out of hours' 

via children's assessment area via on call 

paediatrician 24/7

1.3

Implement all key diabetes care processes referred to in the National Paediatric Diabetes Audit Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies

Nicola Kelly & Dr Davida 

Hawkes

A Business Case is currently being developed for the 

Point of Care testing at clinic appointments to 

increase the level of compliance Oct-14

50% compliance with Hba1c at clinic 

appointments 

1.4

Deliver diabetes structured education to all children & young people with diabetes Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care Family & Therapies and 

Primary Care 

Barbara Cannito & Dr 

Rebekah Price

The All Wales Brecon Group looking at options for 

delivering Structured Education Dec-14

Anticipated resource implications to 

introduce Structured Education

1.5

Have appropriate out-of-hours phone advice services to support children & young people, their parents or 

guardians and clinical staff

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies

Nicola Kelly & Dr Davida 

Hawkes

The specialist team are currently looking to extend 

from office hours to provide a service from 0.9hrs to 

21.00 hrs.   Plan is being developed for ongoing role 

out of education sessions to professionals 

Achieved 

however 

further work 

planned 

Currently office hours telephone advice line 

available.  However, 'out of hours' service is 

available via on call general paediatric 

team/registrar on call/CAU standardised 

guidelines are also available to on-call 

doctors 24/7.  

1.6

Provide insulin pump service in line NICE guidance Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services Family & Therapies 

Sian Millar & Dr Rebekah 

Price Ongoing Review Mar-15

Insulin Pump Services is currently being 

expanded in line with NICE Guidance 

1.7

Ensure that GPs, practice nurses and school nurses are aware of type 1 diabetes in schools and develop 

management systems to support individual pupils to play a full part at school

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Family & Therapies and 

Primary Care 

Barbara Cannito & Dr 

Rebekah Price & John 

Holland 

Awareness raising in primary care with GP and 

Practice Nurses links through Neighbourhood 

Networks Mar-14

Specialist Diabetes Team continue to deliver 

a well documented programme to educate 

staff, including signing off training to check 

glucose levels and administration of insulin 

(insulin usually administered by 

parents/school staff).  

1.8

Develop a transitional care plan to ensure appropriate and seamless transfer of care from paediatric to adult 

diabetes services

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies

Nicola Kelly & Dr Davida 

Hawkes Achieved 

Nurses and Dieticians actively inform and 

prepare clients around their 16th Birthday 

regarding their transition into adult services.  

5 joint paediatric and adult medical clinics 

are held each year for transition.

1.9

Through the Wales Paediatric Diabetes Interest Group (Brecon Group) establish a Quality Assurance Programme 

for paediatric diabetes services 

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Family & Therapies

Nicola Kelly & Dr 

Rebekah Price

ABUHB continue to support this scheme through the 

Brecon Group 2016

Once scheme developed a review of cost 

implications for peer review clinics will be 

developed.

2

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

2.1

Implement all levels of the Wales Obesity Pathway Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 
ABHUB Local Public Health 

Team Jane Layzell

All Divisions to work collaboratively with Public 

Health Wales on implementation of Pathway Apr-14

Weight Management programme is being 

piloted in Torfaen 

2.2

Work with partners to identify, audit and implement local strategies, with clearly stated population outcomes 

and performance measures to prevent diabetes, as outlined in 'Our Healthy Future'

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All Jane Layzell

Review implementation of Exercise Referral on 

prescription and identify gaps Apr-14

Weight Management programme is being 

piloted in Torfaen 

2.3

Promote better public awareness of the risk factors for, and dangers of, developing diabetes and the importance 

of early presentation to primary care

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All John Holland

Primary Care & Networks to work collaboratively 

through All Wales Diabetes Group, Local Partners and 

Third Sector to support design and delivery of 

awareness campaigns Ongoing 

Together for Health - Diabetes Delivery Plan 2013-2016

Objectives

Outcomes:    (1)   Children & young people lead healthier and more active lives as a result of improved glycaemia control    (2)   A reduction in the proportion of children & young people with DKA at diagnosis   (3)   A reduction in the proportion of children & young people admitted for diabetes related complications (DKA 

and Hypoglycaemia)

Outcomes:   (1) Reduced incidence of Type 2 diabetes    (2) Reduced inequality gap for incidence of diabetes across all age groups 

Children & Young People

Preventing Diabetes 

Objectives

T
udalen 117



2.4

Utilise the third sector to provide high quality reliable advice on how to reduce the risks of diabetes and what 

care to expect

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All John Holland Continue to work collaboratively with Diabetes UK Ongoing 

3

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

3.1

Provide accessible educational and support services via local pharmacies, such as vascular risk assessments, 

lifestyle advice, and annual contracted "community pharmacy delivered" public health campaigns

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All

John Holland & Mike 

Curson 

Primary Care & Networks to work with Medicine 

Management and contracted pharmacies to identify 

education and support services through improving 

links via Neighbourhood Networks Ongoing 

Community Pharmacy Wales are currently 

lobbying for service development for a 

vascular risk programme

3.2

At diagnosis, provide all individuals with evidence based education for their type of diabetes, and sign post them 

to  Structured Diabetes Education Programme

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & Networks, 

Dietetics 

John Holland & Clare 

Norris

Implement "First Step" X-Pert to all newly diagnosed 

patients with a view to them attending the full 

structured 6 week programme.  Implement single co-

ordinated approach to education across ABUHB to 

deliver equity and increase access Mar-14

Diabetes Structured Education currently 

being provided.  However uptake is poor, 

access and equity is inconsistent

3.3

Achieve QOF targets for the number of patients referred to Structured Diabetes Education within 9 months of 

diagnosis

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 
Primary Care & Structured 

Educators John Holland

Ensure structured advertising of Structured Education 

Programme is delivered wide and monitor referral 

rates and measure against QOF Apr-14

3.4

Work with partners in Local Government, education, community programmes and the third sector to find 

innovative solutions to delivering diabetes education that links to lifestyle change support programmes in 

people's communities; such as walking clubs, peer support and exercise referral

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & Structured 

Educators John Holland

Advertise Structured Educational Programmes and 

work collaborative with partners i.e. local authorities, 

leisure services, pharmacy, primary care to develop 

training programmes to meet the diversity of the 

population within ABUHB area.  Work with Wisdom 

Bank increase accessibility and peer support to 

trusted sites for information and advice to support Mar-15

3.5

Work with primary care and allied healthcare professionals to raise their awareness of the risks and symptoms of 

diabetes, and explore innovative approaches for early detection 

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All John Holland & Leo Pinto 

Up-skill general practice staff in the management of 

diabetes and to recognise early indicators through 

the integrated service model.  Develop mechanisms 

for training and educational leaflets for staff to 

support early detection. Programme of regular 

diabetes update sessions for primary care 

professionals will be developed and implemented 

Ongoing  to 

March 2015

4

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes
Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

4.1

Participation in all aspects of the National Diabetes Audit (including the Pregnancy Care, Foot care and Patient 

Experience parts of the expanded audit programme) and take appropriate action to ensure continuous quality 

improvement

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

All

John Holland, Leo Pinto,  

Lance Reed, Rebekah 

Price

Continue to participate in national audits and develop 

and implement action plans following 

recommendations of audit reports

Rolling 

Programme

4.2

Fully implement National Diabetes Audit in-patient guidelines Improve Management of in-

patients with diabetes with 

acute episodes 
Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto 

Continue to participate in national audits and develop 

and implement action plans following 

recommendations of audit reports Mar-14

4.3

Provide pre-conception counselling for all women of childbearing age on diabetes registers Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care, Unscheduled 

Care & Family & Therapies

John Holland & Sian 

Millar

Links to be made with Family &  Therapies, Primary 

Care & Networks to identify appropriate mechanisms 

to ensure that all child bearing age women receive 

information and advice on pre-conception and the 

risks Jun-14

This is currently being delivered, however a 

review will take place to identify gaps.  A 

service runs with joint antenatal clinics and 

DSNs provide advice to female patients of 

childbearing age.

4.4

Ensure that all healthcare professionals involved in diabetes care are educated in the management of diabetic 

nephropathy and recognition of non diabetic renal disease

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Unscheduled Care Leo Pinto 

Review of current educational programme to be 

undertaken to identify specific educational needs Sep-14

The Directorate has access to specialist 

renal services locally 

Detecting Diabetes Quickly

Delivering Fast, Effective Care

Outcomes: Increased proportion of individuals who understand the affect of a new diagnosis of diabetes and start effective self-management of the disease

Objectives

Outcomes: (1)  Reduction in number of emergency admissions to hospital; readmissions to hospitals; and average length of stay   (2)  Reduction in number of diabetes related eye, foot, kidney and vascular complications   (3)  Improved successful pregnancy outcomes in women with diabetes   (4)  Reduction in inequity 

gap for health care outcomes due to diabetes, with special emphasis on BME group  (5)  Increase the proportion of people who have well managed diabetes as defined by NICE/All Wales targets for glycaemia control, blood pressure and lipids

Objectives

T
udalen 118



4.5

In-patients with a diabetes related foot problem, or found to have one following initial assessment, should be 

referred to a multi-disciplinary diabetic foot care team within 24 hours of admission

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Podiatry Directorate Lance Reed Implement Putting  Feet First pathway across all sites Mar-15 Pathway in place in NHH 

4.6

Implement "putting feet first" pathway and quality standards set for prevention and management of diabetic 

foot disease

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services Podiatry Directorate Lance Reed Implement Putting  Feet First pathway across all sites Mar-15 Pathway in place in NHH 

4.7

Review and refresh Diabetic Retinopathy Screening Service Wales service to ensure that it achieves the best 

outcomes for all patients

Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 
DRSS Wales Welsh Government Review being carried out by Welsh Government Ongoing 

4.8

In-patients with newly diagnosed diabetes should be assessed by a multi-disciplinary team within 48-72 hours of 

admission and their diabetes care should be overseen by the team

Improve Management of in-

patients with diabetes with 

acute episodes 

Diabetes Directorate Leo Pinto 

Review current provision in NHH and roll out across 

RGH and YYF Oct-14 This is currently being provided in NHH

4.9

Establish and continue a rolling healthcare professional education programme Improve Management of in-

patients with diabetes with 

acute episodes 

Diabetes Directorate Leo Pinto

Review current professional rolling programme and 

identify development needs to inform and delivery 

outcomes of national in-patient audit Apr-14 Professional Programme in place

4.1

Ensure provision of an insulin pump service in line with NICE guidance Appropriate Access to Specialist 

Support Services 

Diabetes Directorate Leo Pinto Ongoing Review Achieved Pump Service being delivered 

4.11

Ensure culturally appropriate information is available to patients, families and carers in the appropriate language Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

All All Leads

Work collaboratively across all Divisions to review all 

current information to identify gaps in provision Ongoing Translation service is available 

4.12

Develop and implement integrated diabetes services to increase the management of diabetes within the 

Community

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & 

Unscheduled Care John Holland & Leo Pinto 

Work collaboratively with primary and unscheduled 

care to develop and implement Diabetes Integrated 

Services Model across all Neighbourhood Care 

Networks Mar-14

Model agreed, first stage of implementation 

i.e. telephone and email will be available 

from January 2014

4.13

Develop and implement Community Pharmacy & Medicine Management Programme to ensure effective 

management of diabetes

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & Networks, 

Medicine Management 

John Holland & Mike 

Curson 

Work collaboratively with Pharmacy & Medicine 

Management Division to implement programme ongoing Plan developed and being implemented 

5

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

5.1

Plan and deliver a recognised Structured Diabetes Education service that meets the necessary recommendations 

for quality and audit, which is in line with NICE guidance

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & Networks John Holland

Implement "First Step" X-Pert to all newly diagnosed 

patients with a view to them attending the full 

structured 6 week programme.  Implement single co-

ordinated approach to education across ABUHB to 

deliver equity and increase access.  Review and 

implement education for Type 1 Adults Ongoing X-Pert currently being delivered

5.2

All people with diabetes to have a personalised care in place Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 
Unscheduled Care & 

Primary Care & Networks

John Holland and Leo 

Pinto Agreed Care Plan to be developed and implemented Mar-15

5.3

All diabetic patients to receive all key indicator measurements annually as referred to in the National Diabetes 

Audit 

Optimise Patient Management 

in Primary Care 

Primary Care & Networks John Holland

Ongoing review of practice uptake and 

implementation to measure and monitor compliance.  Ongoing 

Currently being implement but 

inconsistencies identified 

6

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes
Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

6.1

Work with NWIS to implement national diabetes patient management system across Local Health Boards Welsh Government
Transformation Group All Leads

Proactively work with All Wales Group and NWIS in 

development of system ongoing Meetings commenced

6.2

Health Boards to publish regular and easy to understand information about the effectiveness of their diabetes 

services

ABHB Board

Transformation Group All Leads

Development of mechanisms for information sharing 

being developed through All Wales Diabetes Planning 

& Delivery Group Ongoing Reporting schedules set up 

Improving Information 

Support Living with Diabetes 

Outcomes:(1)  Increase the proportion of people with type 1 and type 2 diabetes who achieve effective self-management of the disease   (2) Increase in the number of patients having well controlled blood sugar levels   (3)  Reduction in number of glycaemia emergencies as a result of diabetes

Objectives

Objectives

Outcomes: Public able to make effective choices about their care based on regularly updated information on the effectiveness of diabetes services

T
udalen 119



6.3

Work with the third sector to ensure effective signposting to sources of information and support ABHB Board

Transformation Group All Leads

Continue to proactive support and involve Third 

Sector in service transformation Ongoing Already in place 

7

Link to Driver Diagramme Key 

Themes
Lead Division/s Responsible Person Actions Timescales Baseline

7.1 Work with Diabetes Research Network to secure research and development funding for diabetes All Key Themes All All Leads Ongoing review of current research projects ongoing Baseline being established

7.2
Encourage more people with diabetes to participate in research activity All Key Themes All All Leads Engage Patient Reference Groups in Research Ongoing Baseline being established

Objectives

Outcomes: Increased and improved research activity resulting in improved healthcare outcomes for people with diabetes

Targeting Research 

T
udalen 120



 
Appendix 4 

Reporting Indicators on Diabetes Delivery Plan 
 

Outcome Indicators: 
 

Incidence of Type 2 Diabetes per 100,000 population 

Circulatory disease mortality rate under age 75 per 100,000 population 

Age group specific diabetes mortality rate under age 75 per 100,000 
population 

Variations in incidences of complications of diabetes by geography and 
deprivation 

 
 

NHS Assurance Measures: 
 

% of children and young people 

achieving improved glycaemia control, 
defined as: 

A reduction of median HbA1c nationally 

by 11mmol/mol (1%) within 5 years 
and by 16mmol/mol (1.5%) within 10 

years 

A year on year reduction in the number 

of children and young people with poor 
diabetes control (HbA1c>80mmol/mol 
(9.5%)) 

A year on year increase in the number 
of children and young people with good 

glycaemia control (HbA1c 
<59mmol(7.5%)) 

% of children with diabetes achieving normal growth  

% of children, young people and adults receiving Structured Diabetes Education 

within 12 months of diagnosis 

Diabetic compared to non-diabetic: number of emergency admissions to 

hospital; readmissions to hospital; and average length of stay 

% of people with diabetes related limb amputation 

% of people with diabetes with sight threatening retinopathy or blindness 

% of people with diabetes with new foot ulcer 

% of people with diabetes reaching end stage renal disease or requiring renal 

replacement therapy 

% of successful pregnancy outcomes in women with diabetes 

% of people with a diagnosis of diabetes who are satisfied with their personal 
care plan 

% of people with diabetes having well controlled blood sugar levels 

% of people experiencing a glycaemia emergency as a result of their diabetes 

% of people with diabetes who receive all key indicator measurements for 
diabetes  

 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-06-14 - Paper to note 9

Tudalen 122

Eitem 8c



Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC / AM 
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth 
Minister for Economy, Science and Transport  
 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper 

 

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-373  
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/03115/13 

William Powell AM 
Chair Petitions Committee 
 
committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 

  
 
Dear William 
 
Thank you for your request for an update on your trading in lay-bys petition. 
 
Further to my letter dated 3 October 2013, I have been considering the issues, 
including the advantages and disadvantages of each option for addressing 
trading in lay-bys across the trunk road network in Wales.  
 
In order to introduce a consistent policy across Wales, I am considering the 
possible phased introduction of licencing at existing sites, combined with a 
prioritised lay-by upgrade programme.  Whilst this would incur additional 
expenditure, this would enable us to allow existing traders to remain in 
business, address the long term safety issues, control the potential adverse 
effects of trading in lay-bys and facilitate the development of new services for 
road users.   
 
However, before taking a formal decision on this, I wish to seek the views of 
social partners, in particular the Federation of Small Businesses.   
 
I will write to you again later next month once I have received their views.  
 

 

 

17 December  2013 

Tudalen 123



 February 2014 
 

Sport Wales response to The 
Children and Young People 
Committee Inquiry into 
Childhood Obesity 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-06-14 - Paper to note 10

Tudalen 124

Eitem 8d



 February 2014 
 

 

1. About Sport Wales 

1.1 We welcome the opportunity to respond to this inquiry. Sport Wales is the national organisation 

responsible for developing and promoting sport and physical recreation. Working with partner agencies, 

on a national and local level, we aim to increase the frequency of participation in sporting activity, as 

well as improving elite performance. We take a broad view of sport, from traditional sports, such as 

swimming and hockey to newer activities such as zumba and dance. We are also the main adviser on 

sporting matters to the Welsh Government and are responsible for distributing funds from the National 

Lottery to sport in Wales. 

2. Overview 

2.1 Lack of physical activity has been identified as one of the leading risk factors for global mortality by the 

World Health Organisation1. At Sport Wales one of our primary purposes is to work with a range of 

partners to make sport as attractive and accessible as possible to the Welsh population, harnessing the 

inspiration of performances on the elite level to create vibrant sporting communities right across Wales. 

We firmly believe that sport has a key role to play in improving the overall health of the nation and for 

too long has been sat on the side lines of the national debate in relation to health and obesity.  

2.2 We also believe that the nature of the debate around obesity needs to change. In the Welsh press in the 

last six to nine months we have seen a series of stories warning of increasing obesity in Wales and the 

potential impact on both the health of the nation and public finances. The focus on obesity is addressing 

the symptom and not the underlying problem, which is a lack of physical activity across the Welsh 

population. There can be no doubt that Wales is viewed across the world as a nation that gets behind its 

sport teams and stars, but much work is to be done in going from a nation of supporters to a nation of 

active participants. We need to create a cultural shift in attitudes towards sport and physical activity in 

Wales, starting with the very youngest. 

2.3 It is no longer sustainable for people not to take personal responsibility for being active, but we have to 

ensure that we are creating an environment that not only encourages activity, making clear the positive 

impact it can have on your life, but also makes it easily accessible. If we are to reduce obesity we need to 

be making participation in physical activity a natural part of people’s lives, a habit built from the earliest 

age that is almost not a choice but a lifestyle.  

2.4 Our 2013 School Sport Survey has demonstrated a positive movement in children and young people 

being frequently physically active and enjoying sport, but this has not been seen uniformly across all 

sections of society. Unsurprisingly some of those groups that experience greater health problems, 

including obesity, are those who participate at a lower level than their peers, e.g. those living in poorer 

areas. 

2.5 The Survey also pointed us in the direction of how we can make children and young people more active, 

through focusing on developing the basic skills, building confidence through activity and overall making 

the sporting opportunity fun. Ability, confidence and enjoyment need to be the three pillars that form 

the basis for all activity in both schools and communities. By taking this approach in Wales we have the 

                                                 
1 Global Recommendations for Physical Activity for Health, World Health Organisation, 2010 
http://whqlibdoc.who.int/publications/2010/9789241599979_eng.pdf  

Tudalen 125

http://whqlibdoc.who.int/publications/2010/9789241599979_eng.pdf


 February 2014 
 

opportunity to create a generation of young adults with the ability and motivation to have a lifelong 

participation in sport. 

2.6 Schools play a crucial role in providing all children and young people with the basic skills that they need 

to flourish as adults. The ability to be physically competent and confident should be regarded on the 

same level as learning your times tables and spelling. Enhancing the importance of PE within the Welsh 

curriculum would send out a clear message to all children and young people, that your physical health is 

as important as your academic ability. This would mean that it would no longer be left to those Heads 

who are passionate about the value sport brings and seek to embed it in the lives of their pupils, all 

schools and all pupils could expect to have a positive experience that they could then take into their 

adult life as a habit. 

2.7 If we can get this right at an early stage through our schools, we can nurture the habit throughout life 

through greater collaboration between health, education, sport and other partners to be sharing 

outcomes and resources in order to ensure that sporting opportunities are accessible to all, we can 

make a significant impact on a whole range of preventable illnesses. 

3.  Increasing physical activity through schools 

3.1 In October 2013 Sport Wales published the UK’s largest ever survey of children and young people and 

sport. Our School Sport Survey spoke to almost 110,000 pupils from over 900 schools, making it the 

most comprehensive exercise in capturing the views of Welsh children ever undertaken. 

3.2 The most positive indication from the survey was the increase from 27% in 2011 to 40% in 2013 of the 

number of children and young people taking part in sport on three or more occasions per week, Sport 

Wales’ ‘hooked on sport’ measure. This leap in frequency is very promising as if it could be retained into 

adulthood it could make a considerable inroad into the level of obesity in Wales, with people having 

greater confidence to participate more often. 

3.3 We are encouraged to see significant reductions in the percentage of children and young people 

undertaking sport and physical activity on less than three occasions a week, and particularly among the 

most sedentary.  In 2011, for example, 17% did not take part in sport and physical activity at all.  In 2013, 

this reduced to 12%.  Putting this into numbers, we have 15,000 less children and young people who 

don’t take part in any form of sport or physical activity (50,600 in 2011 and 35,600 in 2013).  

3.4 The Survey also clearly identified that children and young people were enjoying PE and sport, with 60% 

of pupils saying they enjoyed PE ‘a lot’ and 60% saying they enjoy sport outside of school ‘a lot’. There 

has also been an increase in participation in years 7-11 in extra-curricular activity with 78% of boys and 

69% of girls now participating, compared with 68% and 63% respectively in 2011. This has also been 

mirrored in participation in sport in a club being 77% for boys and 70% for girls, compared to 72% and 

65% in 2011. Overall this indicates a positive picture of more children and young people taking part in 

sport more often and enjoying it.  

3.5 However there are a number of findings that make more sobering reading. There continues to be an 

attrition in participation from the age of 12 to 16, before there is a more dramatic decline in 

participation, particularly noticeable for girls. The participation gap between boys and girls, despite the 

rises seen since 2011, also stubbornly remains. 44% of boys are “hooked on sport”, compared to 36% of 

girls.  

3.6 This is also reflected in other groups with those in the least deprived schools (as measured by the receipt 

of Free School Meal measure) being 11% more likely to be “hooked on sport” than those in the most 

Tudalen 126



 February 2014 
 

deprived schools. White and mixed race pupils have a higher “hooked on sport” percentage than 

Black/Black British and Asian/Asian British pupils, with only 20% of Asian/Asian British girls regularly 

participating. Finally children and young people with a disability/impairment participate regularly 10% 

less than their non-disabled/impaired peers. It is no surprise that some of these groups are also the ones 

that experience some of the poorest health outcomes.  

3.7 From this it is clear that there is still work to do in ensuring that every child is able to access a positive 

sporting experience and reap the health benefits of participation in an activity of their choice. We do not 

believe that sport is only for the few, we view sport as something that is a right for all children and 

young people. Being physically competent and confident should be basic skills that children and young 

people learn at school, alongside the academic skills of numeracy and literacy.  

3.8 The Survey does provide some revealing information on what encourages greater frequency of 

participation and it is these elements that we believe need to lay at the heart of increasing physical 

activity and through that tackling obesity.  

3.9 If pupils enjoyed the activity a lot they were a staggering 195% more likely to participate three or more 

times a week. If they played in a school team, so had a level of ability in a sport, they were 144% more 

likely to regularly participate. Finally if they felt very confident in trying new activities then they were 

58% more likely to meet the "hooked on sport" measure. These three elements of ability, confidence 

and enjoyment should be the foundations blocks of all school and community activity, which are also 

some of the basic elements of physical literacy.  

3.10 This is where our army of Young Ambassadors can be so influential. A London 2012 legacy project in 

partnership with the Youth Sport Trust we now have almost 4000 Young Ambassadors across Wales, 

actively promoting sporting opportunities to their peers. Whilst some young people will be inspired by 

their favorite sports star, we know that many more are influenced and inspired by their friends. These 

young people are working in our schools to get the voice of pupils heard in provision and act as that little 

bit of encouragement some of their friends need to try something new. 

3.11 With all our messaging on the issue of obesity, or any other public health message, it has probably 

been a bit too “done to” young people rather than “done with”. The Survey shows that young people 

know the importance of activity as part of a healthy lifestyle, by harnessing the enthusiasm and 

creativity of our Young Ambassadors we are aiming to provide that mentoring and support to encourage 

greater participation. 

3.12 The Survey identified that 33,000 children and young people (11,000 boys and 22,000 girls) would 

take part more regularly if they were "better at sport". These are not pupils who are saying sport is not 

for them, these are young people saying if you give them the understanding they would proactively get 

involved more than they currently are. School plays a critical role in delivering these basic skills for all 

children and young people. 

3.13 It is for this reason that we fully endorse the recommendation made by the Schools and Physical 

Activity Task Group Chaired by Baroness Tanni Grey-Thompson that PE should become a core subject in 

the Welsh Curriculum. This ground breaking step would send out a clear signal that in Wales we want all 

our children to develop the physical skills to be able to live a healthy life and that we believe that 

physical development is as important as mental development. 

3.14 The best way to influence culture is to embed it early as an activity that is enjoyed from childhood. 

Through getting the curriculum offer right, based on learning the key skills and building confidence in an 

enjoyable environment, and reflecting this in community activity that sets an appropriate challenge, 

Tudalen 127



 February 2014 
 

without losing the enjoyment, we can create a generation of young adults who see physical activity as 

simply part of their lives, not something they have to opt in or out of. 

4. Greater partnerships delivering shared outcomes 

4.1 This increase in participation has been created through the sport sector working with like-minded 

colleagues in the education sector, but if we are to tackle issues such as obesity seriously there needs to 

be much greater direction and expectation on partnership working to deliver increased sport 

participation and the associated health outcomes. 

4.2 We have recently been asked by Ministers to pull together a joint programme of activity with Public 

Health Wales, with a view to the two organisations sharing knowledge and resources to encourage 

greater participation in sport and physical activity. Whilst we are at early days in terms of developments, 

we are encouraged by the positive approach that has been taken and hope that this partnership will 

make a significant difference to how the sport and health sectors work together. 

4.3 As Sport Wales we have started to identify new partners to work with and invest in to create new 

opportunities for people to reap the benefits of sporting activity. We have made a £150,000 lottery 

investment into a partnership between Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board and Disability Sport Wales. The 

investment will see the creation of a specific post that will seek to signpost disabled people who come 

through the health board to sport and physical activity opportunities across the North Wales area, with 

the long term aim of reducing the requirement for medical intervention as a consequence of ill-health 

linked to physical inactivity. Whilst this is a three year investment, we are hopeful that if successful this 

could be a model replicated elsewhere. 

4.4 We have also made a £60,000 investment into RCT Homes to support an active family service that will 

seek to facilitate behavior change within the families they house, supporting them to overcome barriers 

to participation in sport and physical activity. Like Betsi Cadwaladr, RCT Homes is a completely new 

partner for us at Sport Wales and again whilst we are at the very beginning of the three year funding, we 

are hopeful that this can prove to be a model that can be replicated and built upon in terms of reaching 

some of our more deprived communities in Wales with sporting opportunities. 

4.5 These specific projects come on top of the funding that we provide to organisations such as StreetGames 

to work in deprived communities across Wales and the lottery awards that we make with partners in 

every local authority area in Wales. What we hope they demonstrate is that we are actively looking at 

new partnerships and investing in them where we believe that they can help us encourage greater 

sports participation and through that tackle some of the long standing health issues that these 

communities face. 

4.6 However we recognise that we are trying to achieve this shift against a backdrop of ever tightening 

public finances, where local leisure budgets are being cut due to the pressure on local government 

budgets. We need to make a clear statement and work across sectors to ensure that we have a 

sustainable model for sport in our communities. Funding plays a role, but as does transport and local 

planning. We understand that difficult decisions will need to be made going forward, but if we value 

sport and activity as an intervention then we need to ensure that we are creating an environment for 

people to access opportunities. 

4.7 An interesting model for the committee to consider would be the Be Active programme in Birmingham. 

The programme has been operating since September 2009 and is a funding partnership between 

Birmingham City Council and the local NHS primary care trusts. The aim is to tackle health inequalities by 

offering free physical activity sessions to all residents in the city. The evaluation of the programme 

Tudalen 128



 February 2014 
 

identified that the benefits generated by the scheme exceeded its cost by £445.2million, which included 

health cost saving and improved quality of life2  

4.8 We firmly believe that there is a case to see greater collaboration between the sport and leisure sector 

and the health sector in tackling illnesses such as obesity. 

5. Changing the image of sports participation 

5.1 If we are to tackle obesity and other preventable illnesses through sport then we recognize the need for 

a cultural and attitudinal shift in the Welsh population towards sport. We recognise that some people, 

including professionals, take the view that sport is for the few, that you have to have an innate talent, 

that it is built on being aggressive and overly competitive. When described like that it is not really a 

surprise when people decide that it is not for them. 

5.2 We believe that this is not what sport looks like in Wales in 2014. Our governing bodies are increasing 

their efforts to adapt their sports, making them more attractive and accessible for new participants. At 

Sport Wales we have launched our What Moves You? (www.whatmovesyou.org.uk) campaign, which 

seeks to present sporting opportunities in a more fun and sociable way to a female audience. What we 

find is that the biggest barrier for many people is taking that first step of trying an activity for the first 

time. Creating an approach and an environment that removes some of this trepidation should be our 

collective starting point. 

5.3 Promoting greater sports participation needs to be a collective responsibility across professions and 

sectors. We need to move away from the mentality that sport might not be for everyone, to a position 

where we are saying that there is an opportunity for everyone to take part. Whether competitively 

challenging yourself against your peers or taking part in a recreational opportunity with your friends, 

there is something out there for you. If we can break down the myths around sport and change the 

perception it will be a huge stride forward in encouraging more healthy lifestyles for the Welsh 

population. 

6. Conclusion 

6.1 We believe that sport has been an underutilised resource in the fight against obesity and other 

preventable conditions. As a sector we are keen to work with all partners, public, private and voluntary, 

to ensure that everyone can reap the health benefits that participation in sport brings. 

6.2 We believe that there are a few key areas that the committee could consider in the long term fight to 

tackle obesity: 

- Increasing the importance and quality of PE in the national curriculum in Wales; 

- Ensuring participation sport is included at the heart of preventative public health messaging 

and campaigns; 

- Exploring models of collaboration to deliver increased sports participation, which also target 

particular groups that have poor health outcomes; 

- Encourage a common approach that promotes sport as an inclusive activity for all, with a 

shared vision for increasing participation. 

                                                 
2 Cost-benefit analysis and social impact bond feasibility analysis for the Birmingham Be Active scheme, Matrix Evidence, 
December 2011 

Tudalen 129

http://www.whatmovesyou.org.uk/


 February 2014 
 

6.3 The 110,000 pupils who completed our School Sport Survey have clearly pointed us in the direction of 

travel to secure ever greater numbers participating in sport. We recognise that in order to maintain 

participation into adulthood we as a sports sector cannot achieve this alone, but need to work across 

sectors. 

6.4 We hope that this evidence has been useful to committee members and we would be happy to discuss 

further any aspect. 

Simon Jones 
Public Affairs Manager 
Sport Wales 
(029)20338275 
simon.jones@sportwales.org.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Tudalen 130

mailto:simon.jones@sportwales.org.uk

	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i Ganlyniadau Addysgol Plant o Gartrefi Incwm Isel - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 6
	CYPE(4)-06-14 - Papur 1

	3 Ymchwiliad i Ganlyniadau Addysgol Plant o Gartrefi Incwm Isel - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7
	CYPE(4)-06-14 - Papur 3
	CYPE(4)-06-14 - Papur 4

	6 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru
	7 Ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant - Ystyried yr adroddiad drafft
	8a Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus
	8b Gwybodaeth ychwanegol ar gyfer yr ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant gan CLlLC yn dilyn cyfarfod 15 Ionawr
	8c Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau
	8d Cyflwyniad gan Chwaraeon Cymru ar gyfer yr ymchwiliad i ordewdra ymysg plant



